-

\_

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 11th February, 2026

10.00 am

Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall,
Maidstone

~

Council

kent.gov.uk




Council

kent.gov.uk

AGENDA

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 11 February, 2026, at 10.00 am  Ask for: James Clapson
Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Telephone: 03000417387
Hall, Maidstone

Membership (15)

Reform UK (8): Mr J Eustace (Chair), Mr R Palmer (Vice-Chair), Mr W Chapman,
Ms S Emberson, Mr R Mayall, Mr T Mole, Mr T L Shonk and
Mr D Truder

Liberal Democrat (3): Mr M Brice, Mr G R Samme and Vacancy

Green (1): Mr S Heaver
Conservative (1): Mrs S Hudson
The Independent Mr P Thomas
Group (1):

Labour (1): Vacancy

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public

A. COMMITTEE BUSINESS

1. Apologies

2. Declarations of Interest

3. Minutes of the Meeting 17.12.2025 (Pages 1 - 4)
4. Site Meetings and Other Meetings



B. GENERAL MATTERS

C. MINERALS AND WASTE APPLICATIONS

1. Item C1 - Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent TN25
6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025) (Pages 5 - 50)

D. DEVELOPMENTS TO BE CARRIED OUT BY THE COUNTY
COUNCIL

There are no applications for developments to be carried out by the County Council
under consideration at this meeting.

E. MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

1. County matter applications (Pages 51 - 52)
2. County Council developments (Pages 53 - 54)

3.  Screening opinions under Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact
Assessment) Regulations 2017 (Pages 55 - 56)

4.  Scoping opinions under Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact
Assessment) Regulations 2017 (Pages 57 - 58)

EXEMPT ITEMS

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Benjamin Watts
Deputy Chief Executive (Monitoring Officer)
03000 416814

Tuesday, 3 February 2026
(Please note that the draft conditions and background documents referred to in the

accompanying papers may be inspected by arrangement with the Departments
responsible for preparing the report.)



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item A3

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Planning Applications Committee held in the Council
Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Wednesday, 17 December
2025.

PRESENT: Mr J Eustace (Chair), Mr M Brice, Mr W Chapman, Ms S Emberson,
Mr S Heaver, Mrs S Hudson, Mr R Mayall, Mr T Mole, Mr T L Shonk and Mr D Truder

IN ATTENDANCE: Mrs S Thompson (Head of the Planning Applications Group),

Mrs S Bonser (Deputy Head of Law), Mrs M Palmer (Principal Planning Officer), Ms

L Cook (Senior Planning Officer) and Mr J Clapson (Democratic Services Officer).
UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

A. COMMITTEE BUSINESS

25. Apologies
(Item A1)

Apologies were received from Mr Samme and Mr Palmer.

26. Declarations of Interest
(ltem A2)

There were no declarations of interest.

27. Minutes of the Meeting 12.11.2025
(ltem A3)

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 2025 were
correctly recorded and that they be signed by the Chair.

28. Site Meetings and Other Meetings
(Item A4)

There were no site visits scheduled.
B. GENERAL MATTERS
Mrs Thompson advised that:

e The Government had launched a consultation on the revised National
Planning Framework, and the Committee would receive an update in the new
year.

e The Planning and Infrastructure Bill was expected to receive royal assent this
week. This Act would have a significant impact upon future planning
decisions and the work of this Committee. Members would be kept up to date
of changes.

Page 1



C. MINERALS AND WASTE APPLICATIONS

There were no minerals and waste applications for consideration at this meeting

D. DEVELOPMENTS TO BE CARRIED OUT BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL

29.

Item D1 - Proposed change of use of dwelling house into children’s home

at 75 Homewood Avenue, Sittingbourne - SW/25/504240 (KCC/SW/0154/2025)
(ltem D1)

1)
2)

3)

30.

Mrs Palmer, Principal Planning Officer outlined the report.

It was proposed by Chair and seconded by Mrs Hudson that the officer’s
recommendation be adopted, namely:

That PERMISSION BE GRANTED, SUBJECT TO the imposition of conditions
and an informative covering (amongst other matters) the following:

Conditions
i) Development shall commence within 3 years of the date of the permission;
ii) Development to be carried out in accordance with the submitted details.

Informative

i) The applicant is encouraged to engage with the occupiers/owners of the
neighbouring properties to the west of the application site in Homewood
Avenue and Berkeley Court prior to the erection of any new boundary
fencing.

The motion was put to the vote and declared CARRIED.

Item D2 - Proposed change of use of dwelling house into children’s home

at 7 Tudor Byway, Kennington, Ashford - AS/25/1997 (KCC/AS/0162/2025)
(ltem D2)

1)
2)

3)

Mrs Palmer, Principal Planning Officer outlined the report.

It was proposed by Chair and seconded by Mr Brice that the officer’s
recommendation be adopted, namely:

That PERMISSION BE GRANTED, SUBJECT TO the imposition of conditions
covering (amongst other matters) the following:

i) Development shall commence within 3 years of the date of the permission;
ii) Development to be carried out in accordance with the submitted details.

The motion was put to the vote and declared CARRIED.

Page 2



E. MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

31. County matter applications
(ltem E1)

RESOLVED to note matters dealt with under delegated powers since the meeting on
12 November 2025 relating to:

E1 County matter applications.

32. County Council developments
(ltem E2)

RESOLVED to note matters dealt with under delegated powers since the meeting on
12 November 2025 relating to:

E2 County Council developments.
33. Screening opinions under Town and Country Planning (Environmental
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017

(Item E3)

RESOLVED to note matters dealt with under delegated powers since the meeting on
12 November 2025 relating to:

E3 - Screening opinions under Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact
Assessment) Regulations 2017.

34. Scoping opinions under Town and Country Planning (Environmental
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017
(Item E4)

RESOLVED to note matters dealt with under delegated powers since the meeting on
12 November 2025 relating to:

Scoping opinions under Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact
Assessment) Regulations 2017.

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item C1

Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27
of planning permission SH/08/124 to allow revisions to the
site layout including an amended office location; amended
weighbridge location; cycle parking; additional HGV
parking and amendments to the permitted waste types at
Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent TN25 6DA

- FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)
T

A report by Head of Planning Applications Group to Planning Applications Committee on 11
February 2026.

Application by Countrystyle Recycling Limited for a Section 73 application to vary conditions
3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning permission SH/08/124 to allow revisions to the site layout
including an amended office location; amended weighbridge location; cycle parking;
additional HGV parking and amendments to the permitted waste types at Otterpool Quarry,
Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent TN25 6DA.

Recommendation: Permission be GRANTED subject to conditions.

Local Member: Mr Christopher Hespe Classification: Unrestricted

Site

1. The application site sits adjacent to the A20 within a mixed commercial—rural corridor
featuring roadside services and transport uses, with farmland and open countryside
forming the wider environmental setting. The closest receptor, the Airport Café, lies
30m to the north of the site boundary. The closest residential properties to the site are
the Otterpool Manor (to the west) and Upper Otterpool (to the south) at 250m distant
from the site. Both Otterpool Manor and Upper Otterpool are designated as Grade I
Listed Buildings. Other scattered properties sit further along the A20.

2.  The site is approximately midway between the villages of Sellindge to the north and
Lympne to the south. The site is bounded by the Otterpool Quarry Site of Special
Scientific Interest (SSSI) immediately to the east and south. The Kent Downs National
Landscape is some 2km to the north, 1.7km to the east and 1.2km to the south of the
site. The site looks north towards the M20, the High Speed Railway line (Channel
Tunnel Rail Link), Westenhanger Castle (a Scheduled Ancient Monument) some 1km
to the northeast, the former Folkestone Racecourse, the Junction Motorway 11
services and the A20.

3.  The Otterpool Quarry site is located at the centre of a proposed new town
development, known as the Otterpool Park Development, which is allocated in the
Folkestone Local Plan as a new garden settlement (Policies SS6-SS9 of the
Folkestone and Hythe District Council Core Strategy Review 2022). An outline
planning application for the development of the new garden settlement comprising up
to 8500 homes was considered by the District Council in April 2023, and a resolution to
grant outline planning permission was agreed on 4 April 2023, subject to the
completion of a legal agreement to secure highway improvements and community

Page 5 C1.1



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

infrastructure. Negotiations between the various parties to the legal agreement are
ongoing and it has yet to be completed and as such no planning permission has been
granted.

Recent Site History

4.

Prior to its current use, the site was a former ragstone quarry known as Otterpool
Quarry and the site remained occupied by a Ready Mix Concrete and Asphalt Plant
following the completion of mineral extraction, which were subject to separate
permissions by the former Shepway District Council. These facilities have since been
removed.

Most recently the planning history for the site is as follows:

o SH/08/124 - Construction of a material recycling facility, anaerobic digestion
plant and associated office and parking facilities.

o KCC/SH/0095/2015 - Section 73 application to vary condition 10 (badger
mitigation measures) of planning permission SH/08/124.

Planning permission SH/08/124 (granted in March 2011) permitted the construction
and operation of a Materials Recycling Facility (MRF), an Anaerobic Digestion (AD)
plant, finished product building, and associated office, parking and access
infrastructure. A copy of this permission is included in Appendix A. This planning
permission set out a series of limits on waste types, annual waste throughputs
(75,000 tonnes per annum (tpa) for the MRF and 20,000 tpa for the AD plant), limits on
traffic movements of 168 HGV movements per day, and limits on operational hours
with no waste deliveries on Sundays or on bank and public holidays. The permission
includes comprehensive environmental controls, covering noise, dust, odour, lighting,
and drainage. The planning permission has been implemented and construction of the
MREF is near completion, it is understood at this time the AD plant is not going to be
constructed but the permission is there should the operator choose to use it. The site
is recognised as a safeguarded waste management facility within the Kent Minerals
and Waste Local Plan.

Planning permission KCC/SH/0095/2015 granted in January 2016 approved
amendments to the approved badger mitigation measures. Following detailed on site
drainage works and implementation of the landscape scheme it was required for a
number of additional badger mitigation measures to be implemented alongside the
original mitigation measures.

C1.2
Page 6



Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

Site Location Plan

[[REPRODUCED FROM THE ORDNANCE SURVEY WAP|
BWITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF
HHER MAJESTYS STATIONARY OFFICE, CROWN

P s

STANFORE 1

& m’ﬁﬁ&; C'aml a&: |

)

\ H T ——Ea 4
arveyland ontine | .

\“.‘Flrm &b Farm =

&5 |

Sheepfold L —l

Received - 18 Sep 2009 ste [OTTERPOOL QUARRY |
Planning Applications Group — )
r Project [PLANNING APPLICATION |
COUNTRYSt)’lC Date  [DECEMBER 08 | Scale [1:25,000 |
u S L R Dra_wing " Dwg No.
s Site Location Plan OP/1
ger-lf %3-1376-00002 0_PL 402D |

C1.3
Page 7



Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

Proposed Site Layout

H
| :
|

«=
|
| EE2
. g5 7R
=3 EHE / /
O
-
o
o
a.
x
<
L
T
s
/ EH
o / L
5/, 38
v /‘/
//
y
y
.«/
] /
/
[ /
/ 5
y
/ /
? /
'
y
y
(&)
/ / :
=z
// :
/

/ S
/ / a |z
/ / £

/"J
/"/‘
/‘V/
/
4 X
/
- /
\——»7-7,—,7,—7,—,7,—777—/— =
EINVT 100443110
Rk

Page 8



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning

SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

permission

Proposed Water Tank

zL [ w ] o ] 6

AN 3OS OL 1ON 1E3LpUNAD 5202/90/92
\/ ELAH IdAL HNVL 3lva
WOXHIURHEIOUHPqMMM.
Ao eloweq@sajenjueLIaem ew] | 0ZLSEZ EvFL(0) Yi+ [BL
i 4718 Z£4D UNPAIUOG “JUeS|IURT] HEd SSaUISNg JueSIUeT]

%, SHuel [eiowjeg

z-vzesziisza cwoOS Yuey Japjuuds panroidde god1
ON JLVNILST 3711 3IVALLST
VZEQZLISZO Buiphoay a|A}sAnunon
ON 3LOND AN3IND
o4 juay joodionO

‘ON 80P EQIUN: o)y

0.7 SHNVL WHOWTVE 30 ONILRA NI INISNOD LNOHLIM AL¥Yd GYIHL Y OL 03S0T0SIO
40 030NN 'A31d0D LON SI LI L¥HL NOILIGNOD NO G3NSS| S ANV LHORIADOD S| ONIMVHA SIHL

uonew.Joju| Jo4

s1aulo 4q ‘qels 8181000 ysiul 1e0jd

Uopeusoju| Juepodw| :eseg Juel |

0'Z @nss| 9/g) Sd7 0} yue} uoieayoads gOd1 :uoiedyads [eisuss
‘payoeye 005 - 9p£0} NI 4 0} pasiuenjeg :Ajjeussixg buneod
“payoeNe 883 - 9¥E0L N3 S 01 pasiueAes :Ajleussiul Buneod
Junopy ajbuy :Buixi4 |BUS

8UON :9UOZ JIUSIBS

2W/NYG . :Buipeo punoi

Jaur |fng :edh) Buiees

(peoT o ;W/NdS2 0) dooq yBnouy :edk) jooy

wg"/ X Wy'G@ suoisuswiq

(19180 PEAQ WW| 0Z ‘pIe0gas)y WWQZE) (We'E0g Auoeded aanoay3

B0 91N D PO M WO0E
5500 % Byd U -

UADEHAST
o0%HS
S OrZ0ISE A

& Guoay

U504 10NN S S0P WSS TS oo Tl
AWIg] I NOILINOS3A LHOHS ALD 3000 AMOO3LYD

©
v
T
v
v
v
v
v
v
v
v
v
T
v
v
v

NOLLISOd

NOILOINNOD
3HL 40 IHIN3D FHL NI INIOd ¥ IONIH3434 SNOISNINIA TYOLLYIA ONY WINOZIMOH FHL 'NO G30¥1d §I
L1 IVHL 13NV 3HL 50 L3431 WOLLOB 3HLINOMS N3HL SAYAY 3u¥ SNOISNIWIQ NOLLISOd NOLLOINNOD JHL

Goovee

2

11

-

-

042

H

.06

\

WiiESTE0

31300 8YTS WININ WIGEROI0

I -
L

i
i

081

gL

cl 25 0l 6

C1.5

Page 9



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning

SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

permission

Approved Materials Recycling Facility — SH/08/124

T
LOVBOE 522104
00760¢ SZZH0 L &
V2 §1v8 FHIHSLIM &
NOAV-NO-QHO4avHE |
3NV NIAMOY A g
3SNOH QOOMNITHL —
[ o) ams
gdo [ oosd]
‘oN Bupmesg 800C ¥38W3D34| era
d4dN
9y} uo suoljeas|3y —umwOQO._n_
Bumesq

NOILYDINddY ONINNY1d _ 10001

AHYYNO ._OOn_Mm._.._.O_ aus

~—~

GEE:QQ

Suswion %@ penssi]_sieq enss|

HO g003a |

dnoio suoneolddy Buluueld

6002 das 8| - panisIay

ONIOAvTD 3N408d 133LS - IVIHILYW
20009 434 NIFHO FOVLIMIH - ¥NOT0D ONIaTINg

[

S3LON|

00g:1 3OS
ONIATINE ¥ NO NOILVAIT3 3AIS LHOIH

0063 ITWOS
ONIATING FHN NO NOILLVAIT3 X0vE

[e—— GTL —=

|

0051 3OS
ONICTING 49N NO NOILVAZT3 3dIS L4371

B e e e
ONIATING 39N NO NOLLVYAI T3 LNOY4
sl

ONIGAYTO 330%d 133US - WY wts\

20008 434 N3FUO JOVLINTH -¥NOT0D

wenawos
ONIATING 48N NO NV1d

we6

wog

-

S3NI ONLLHOS/ SUINIZHOS/ S1738

—

1
T T Y T

—

-
i
i
.
i
SHIVE H
.
L
|
i
7
i
. |

C1.6

Page 10



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

Proposal

8.

10.

11.

12.

The application is submitted on behalf of Countrystyle Recycling Limited and seeks to
vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of SH/08/124 which relate to:

Condition 3 — the approved plans;

Condition 21 — the approved odour management measures;
Condition 25 — the approved building uses; and

Condition 27 — the approved waste types.

Planning permission SH/08/124 has been implemented. Construction is underway and
the applicant is seeking a number of amendments to improve operational efficiency
and to align the planning consent with the site’s recently updated Environmental
Permit, approved and regulated by the Environment Agency.

The proposed changes include revisions to the permitted site layout, specific
adjustments to the locations of the office building, weighbridge and cycle parking,
along with the introduction of an additional 5 HGV parking spaces to improve internal
circulation and avoid queuing on and off site, and a new fire safety water tank. No
changes are proposed to the site boundary, access arrangements, or the maximum
number of HGV movements, which remains limited to 168 per day. All previously
approved details including drainage, landscaping and contamination investigations
remain unchanged.

The key element of the application is the revision to the permitted waste streams. The
applicant now seeks to include an element of black bag (household) waste imports to
the MRF, in addition to the previously permitted commercial and industrial waste,
mixed recycling and green waste. This change reflects the recently updated
Environmental Permit issued by the Environment Agency. The total MRF throughput
would remain capped at 75,000 tonnes per annum (tpa), which means that there would
be no increase in waste volumes or vehicle movements.

The application includes a number of supporting assessments including a Transport
Statement, an updated Noise Assessment and an Odour Management Plan which
seek to demonstrate that the proposed changes would not give rise to unacceptable
impacts on the local highway network, nearby receptors or the future Otterpool Park
Development. Existing environmental controls relating to noise, dust, odour, traffic,
hours of operation and building design continue to apply, and the facility would operate
in accordance with approved mitigation measures. The revisions are intended to
improve site efficiency, ensure regulatory alignment with the Environmental Permit and
maintain compliance with national and local planning policies, while safeguarding the
amenity of current and future neighbours.

Planning Policy

13.

14.

The most relevant national planning policy and guidance, and development plan
policies, to the determination of this application are summarised below:

National Planning Policies — the National Planning Policy Framework (updated 7
February 2025) (NPPF) and National Planning Policy for Waste (2014) are material
planning considerations, along with the consultation draft of the NPPF, published in

C1.7
Page 11



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

15.

16.

17.

December 2025 which shall be afforded limited weight as currently within the first
stage of the consultation period. As with the current NPPF, the emerging Framework
does not have specific policies on waste development.

Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2024-39 (Adopted March 2025) - Policies:
CSW1 (Sustainable Development); CSW2 (Waste Hierarchy); CSW4 (Strategy for
Waste Management Capacity Net Self-sufficiency and Waste Movements); CSW16
(Safeguarding of Existing Waste Management Facilities); DM1 (Sustainable Design);
DM3 (Ecological Impact Assessment); DM 8 (Safeguarding Minerals Management,
Transportation, Production and Waste Management Facilities); DM10 (Water
Environment); DM11 (Health and Amenity); DM12 (Cumulative Impact); DM13
(Transportation of Minerals and Waste); and DM16 (Information Required in Support of
an Application).

Folkestone & Hythe Places and Policies Local Plan (2020) — Policies: T2 (Parking
Standards); T4 (Parking for HGVs); NE2 (Biodiversity); NE3 (Protecting the District’s
Landscapes and Countryside); NE5 (Light Pollution and External lllumination); CC3
(Sustainable Drainage Systems).

Folkestone & Hythe Core Strategy Review 2022 — Policies: SS1 (District Spatial
Strategy); SS6 (New Garden Settlement - Development Requirements); and CSD5
(Water and Coastal Environmental Management).

Consultations

18.

Folkestone & Hythe District Council (FHDC) - raises no objection but initially
requested further information regarding the required buffer zone around the
safeguarded waste site in the context of the future Otterpool Park Development, to
which | responded as follows:

Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan (KMWLP) Policies CSW16 and DM 8 recognise
that existing waste management sites should be protected and it is important these
sites are not lost, especially in light of the current and projected house building within
the District. | recognise that the Otterpool Park development is an allocated site within
the Local Plan, however, | am also conscious that a waste management consent has
existed on the Otterpool Quarry site prior to the Local Plan allocation and was
therefore considered in the local plan work to allocate the site and in preparing the
current planning application [the Otterpool Park development currently before the
District Council]. Whilst details of the Otterpool Park development are not yet
consented, it is important to find a way for neighbouring land uses to satisfactorily
coexist together. Positively, there are numerous examples across the County where it
has been demonstrated that it is possible for waste operations to successfully coexist
alongside residential properties, not least at the current waste operation at Ross Way,
Folkestone. Whilst there is a resolution to permit the Otterpool Park development,
there is currently no planning permission in place, nor are there finalised plans in place
for the development. | also understand that further changes are proposed to the
Otterpool Park application, which will be submitted and considered by the District
Council later this year. Without detailed Otterpool Park plans in place, it is not possible
to definitively say what the buffer would need to be, so would advise at this time that
the 250m baseline as set out by KMWLP Policies CSW16 and DM8 is the starting
point. This buffer would be the same with or without the current waste

C1.8
Page 12



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

19.

application. Only when detailed plans are prepared, will we be able to assess the
developments together. As the application before the County Council is likely to be
determined first, in my view, the onus is upon the District Council to have regard to the
waste management site and any approved development at Otterpool Quarry, when
considering subsequent final residential plans.

In response FHDC responded as follows:

In respect of odours, we accept the information provided and assurances that control
measures are in place to manage odours, including the controls under the EA permit.

We note your comments regarding the position of this planning application and the
current outline application under consideration by FHDC for the wider garden
settlement. Whilst the waste application may be determined prior to the garden
settlement application, it is a strategic site allocated in the adopted development plan
(Core Strategy policies SS6-SS9) for such purposes and as such weight must be given
to the allocation policies. These policies make provision for both the possible removal
or retention of the quarry waste site for its approved purposes, but not for the proposed
use, and as such any amendment that may require more restrictive measures around
the waste site needs to be considered by KCC against these policies. Having said
this, the current new settlement application does include alternative plans in the event
that the quarry facility is retained. Having reviewed these further, they demonstrate a
250m buffer between the quarry and the proposed development areas. If KCC
conclude that the proposal to accept household waste would not require this distance
to be extended, then this would address our concerns raised.

Sellindge Parish Council — submitted the following comments:

What the Application is For

Variation of 2011 consent at Oftterpool Quarry, Sellindge. Addition of 25,000
tonnes/year of household 'black sack' waste (one-third of throughput). Total throughput
remains 75,000 tpa, but nature of waste changes significantly. Layout changes: new
office, relocated weighbridge, cycle parking, extra HGV bays, and 'sheep dip ramp’.
Applicant claims these are 'minor’ revisions, but impacts are major.

HGV Movements

Capped at 168 HGV movements/day (84 in, 84 out). Equals ~1 movement every 4-5
minutes during weekday operating hours (07:00—18:00). Saturday operations (07:00—
13:00): up to 84 movements (42 in, 42 out). Refuse trucks tend to arrive in
concentrated morning peaks, unlike C&l; waste vehicles. Traffic will intensify further
once Otterpool Park (8,500 homes) is built.

Key Community Concerns

Addition of household waste increases odour, vermin, and bioaerosol risks. Traffic
safety risks: peak-time clustering of refuse trucks and past accident history near site.
Noise already exceeds WHO 55 dB guideline; any increase is harmful. Odour
mitigation relies on outdated 2007/2009 assessments and reactive complaint systems.
Proximity of sensitive receptors (Airport Café, new Oftterpool homes) not properly
assessed. Cumulative impact with Oftterpool Park (8,500 homes) largely ignored.
Overall Message This is not a minor variation. It introduces odorous black sack waste,
maintains high HGV intensity (up to 168 truck movements/day, as often as one every

C1.9
Page 13



Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

4-5 minutes), and ignores the massive new residential population at Otterpool Park.
The risks to local amenity, health, and safety are significant.
In response the applicant provided the following further comments:

Sellindge Parish Council note, in their response, that the inclusion of 25,000 tonnes
per annum (tpa) represents one third of the already permitted throughput for the site.
In respect of permitted vehicle movements, the existing planning permission caps
these at 168 daily movements equating to 84in and 84out.

The planning application before KCC for their determination does not seek to increase
the current permitted throughput, the traffic levels, nor the operating hours already
controlled by planning conditions. Sellindge Parish Council comment that refuse trucks
tend to arrive in concentrated morning peaks, however it is the Applicants view that
this comment is speculative. Owing to the site’s operational opening constraints, it is
acknowledged that there would be a peak in vehicle movements departing the site at
07:00 however, this would not apply to return movements. Based on the Operators
experience in operating a refuse collection service for the London Borough of Bexley, it
is essential that operational planning avoids vehicle queuing at site, as this is an
inefficient method of operation. Routeing is supported by Al-based planning tools
designed to minimise congestion and maximise productivity. Consequently, the
Operator would not anticipate any scenario in which refuse vehicles are required to
queue in order to bring material to the site. Comments on intensification of traffic once
Otterpool Park (OP) is built is also noted. KCC Highways will be aware of the
proposals for OP and traffic levels assessed as part of the wider highway safety and
capacity levels. KCC Highways have been consulted on this planning application and
conclude that the application ‘will not have a material impact on the local highway
network’ therefore no objection is raised.

In response the Parish Council provided the following additional comments:

Sellindge Parish Council continues to object to the above Section 73 application. We
recognise the existence of waste planning permission at this site but we still believe
that the proposed variations would result in material changes to the nature of the
permitted operations, with consequential impacts that have not been adequately
assessed.

Material Change in Operational Character

The application seeks to introduce “25,000 tonnes per annum of black bag / household
waste”, which represents approximately one third of the total permitted throughput.
While the caps remain numerically unchanged, “planning impact is not determined
solely by tonnage”. Black bag waste differs materially from other waste streams in
terms of odour generation, bioaerosols, pest attraction, dwell times, and fire risk.

Odour Impact and Over-Reliance on Environmental Permitting

The applicant accepts that the proposed changes will result in an increase in odour,
describing it as “minor”, yet no updated odour modelling has been submitted.
References in the submission to nearby receptors being “desensitised”, an assumption
that is not supported by evidence and fails to reflect the increasing recreational and
residential sensitivity of the area.

Highway Safety and Risk of HGV Queuing on the A20

C1.10
Page 14



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

20.

Sellindge Parish Council remains extremely concerned about the risk of HGV queuing
and highway safety on the A20.

The site layout drawing confirms that only "nine HGV parking spaces” are provided
within the operational area . The agent acknowledges a morning peak in vehicle
movements, stating - “It is acknowledged that there would be a peak in vehicle
movements departing the site at 07:00”. Despite this, no enforceable HGV queue
management or overflow strategy has been proposed. Any queuing on the A20 would
present a serious safety risk due to traffic speeds and the road’s strategic function.

Failure to Properly Assess Cumulative Impacts with Otterpool Park

When permission SH/08/124 was originally granted, Otterpool Park had not been
proposed. The agent now relies on historic highway and amenity assessments, stating
that -“KCC Highways have been consulted on this planning application and conclude
that the application ‘will not have a material impact on the local highway network™ .
Sellindge Parish Council considers it unsound to assess this application in isolation,
given the transformation of the A20 corridor into a primary residential route serving a
new garden settlement.

Fire Suppression Infrastructure and Environmental Risk

The proposal replaces three previously approved tanks with a single “500m? fire
suppression tank”, described as- “more efficient water discharge as the site’s fire
suppression system”. Sellindge Parish Council recognise the importance of fire
safety, but we continue to have concerns regarding potential contaminated firewater
run-off, failure scenarios, and visual impact. No site-specific Fire Prevention Plan has
been submitted alongside the application, limiting meaningful public and planning
scrutiny.

Ecology
The updated badger walkover survey confirms that -“Sett 1 continues to be an active

main sett, and confirmed in current use”. The report also notes access limitations to
parts of the site due to dense vegetation. Sellindge Parish Council considers that
incremental operational changes risk eroding ecological buffers over time.
Sellindge Parish Council therefore requests that the application be “refused”, or
alternatively deferred pending the submission of:

¢ Robust odour assessment specific to black bag waste

e Cumulative traffic and amenity assessment incorporating Otterpool Park
¢ Enforceable HGV queue management measures

¢ Greater transparency on fire prevention and environmental safeguards

Lympne Parish Council — submitted the following comments:
Conditions 3 and 25 — Site Plan and Use of Buildings

The Parish Council raises no objection to the proposed changes under Conditions 3
and 25.

Condition 27 — Waste Types and Vehicle Movements

The Parish Council understands that the variation seeks to permit the introduction of
black bag waste in addition to the waste types approved in the original permission. The
original application specifies maximum quantities of waste held on site at any one time.

C1.11
Page 15



Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

e The Council requests clarification on whether the proposed variation accounts
for the inclusion of black bag waste within these permitted limits.

e While Condition 27 does not directly concern vehicle movements, the
introduction of different waste types inevitably affects transport operations. The
original permission allows 84 vehicle movements (combined in/out) per day,
and it is noted that this figure remains unchanged. The Council also notes that
nine HGV parking spaces are proposed within the site layout. Concern is
raised about how excess vehicle arrivals will be managed should these spaces
be occupied.

o What mitigation is proposed if additional vehicles arrive at the site?

o Where will such vehicles wait prior to entry? There is a particular concern that
vehicles could resort to waiting or parking on the A20, which poses a serious
safety risk to other road users given the speed and character of traffic on this
section of road.

Condition 21 — Odour Control

Condition 21 addresses odour management. The supporting documentation indicates
a minor increase in odour as a result of this variation and suggests that nearby
receptors are 'desensitised’ to odour due to existing agricultural activity and the nearby
café.

The Parish Council wishes to make the following points:

e The assessment does not appear to consider the potential impact on visitors to
the café or the wider area, who may be discouraged from visiting if odours
increase.

e The report references the future development of Otterpool Garden Town,
suggesting that screening and open space will mitigate odour and visual
impact. However, it fails to recognise that the proposed country park and
recreation areas will attract visitors seeking a clean and healthy environment.
Increased odour from the site would be inconsistent with the health, wellbeing
and sustainability objectives of the Otterpool Garden Town development.

Additional Concerns — Vehicle Routes and Future Impact
The Parish Council reiterates concerns about HGV numbers and the impact on the
A20.

When the original permission was granted, the Otterpool Garden Town development
had not yet been proposed. At that time, this stretch of the A20 passed relatively few
dwellings. Once Otterpool Garden Town is complete, however, the A20 will effectively
form the main route through a residential area. The potential for up to 168 HGV
movements per day on this route will have a significant impact on safety, noise, air
quality, and residential amenity. The cumulative effect of this and other local
developments should therefore be carefully assessed

In summary, the Council seeks clarification and reassurance on:
e The inclusion and management of black bag waste;
e Mitigation for excess vehicle arrivals and potential queuing on the A20;
e The cumulative odour and traffic impact on both existing and future residents
and visitors.

In response to these comments the applicant provided the following further
information:

C1.12
Page 16



Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

Table 1 — Summary of comments

Summary of Parish Council Comments |

The Council requests clarification on
whether the proposed variation

Response/Comments
The inclusion of 25,000 black bag waste per
annum. This figure represents a third of the

accounts for the inclusion of black
bag waste within these permitted
limits.

While Condition 27 does not directly
concern vehicle movements, the
introduction of different waste types
inevitably affects transport
operations. The original permission
allows 84 vehicle movements
(combined in/out) per day, and it is
noted that this figure remains
unchanged.

Summary of Parish Council Comments Response/Comments

already permitted throughput for the site,
which remains unchanged and controlled by
way of the already imposed planning
condition.

The permitted levels of traffic generated for
the site remains controlled by planning
condition. There is no request to increase
traffic as a result of this planning
application. KC Highways have been
consulted on this proposal and do not raise
an objection, indicating that there will be no
material impact on the local highway
network.

The Council also notes that nine HGV
parking spaces are proposed within the site
layout. Concern is raised about how excess
vehicle arrivals will be managed should
these spaces be occupied.

+ What mitigation is proposed if
additional vehicles arrive at the site?
Where will such vehicles wait prior
to entry?

There is a particular concern that vehicles
could resort to waiting or parking on the
A20, which poses a serious safety risk to
other road users given the speed and
character of traffic on this section of road.

L

The access arrangements for the site have
been designed to ensure vehicles visiting
the site do not queue to gain access into
the site. This was considered at the time of
the original planning application and
subsequently, the weighbridge facility is
been designed to be set back from the site
bell mouth by some 50m which was found
to be sufficient space for vehicles to wait at
the site without the need to queue.

In addition, the Applicant proposes a Site
Users Guide to be issued to all drivers
accessing the site, which will include site
opening and closing times.

KCC Highways were consulted at the time
of the original planning application and
again as part of the latest planning
application and have raised no objection.

Condition 21 addresses odour
management. The supporting
documentation indicates a minor increase
in odour as a result of this variation and
suggests that nearby receptors are
'desensitised' to odour due to existing
agricultural activity and the nearby café.
The Parish Council wishes to make the
following points:

The assessment does not appear to
consider the potential impact on
visitors to the café or the wider area,
who may be discouraged from
visiting if odours increase.

The report references the future
development of Otterpool Garden
Town, suggesting that screening
and open space will mitigate odour
and visual impact.

However, it fails to recognise that the
proposed country park and recreation areas

Condition 21 of planning permission
SH/08/124 requires mitigation measures set
out in the original Air Quality Assessment to
be adhered to, to minimize odour nuisance
on local amenity.

As part of the planning application, which
seeks to include a small amount of black
waste to be handled at the site, the
justification for this is to align the planning
permission with the bespoke Environmental
Permit issued by the Environment Agency
(EA).

A key role of the EA is to protect and
manage the environment by regulating such
matters. The Permit includes an approved
odour management plan for the site (dated
May 2024), which enables the site to be
regulated, controlled and monitored for
compliance to ensure no impacts arising
from on-site operations.

Page 17

C1.13




Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

21.

22.

Summary of Parish Council Comments
will attract visitors seeking a clean and
healthy environment. Increased odour from
the site would be inconsistent with the
health, wellbeing and sustainability
objectives of the Otterpool Garden Town
development.

Response/Comments

The Parish Council reiterates concerns
about HGV numbers and the impact on the
A20.

When the original permission was granted,
the Otterpool Garden Town development
had not yet been proposed. At that time,
this stretch of the A20 passed relatively few
dwellings. Once Otterpool Garden Town is
complete, however, the A20 will effectively
form the main route through a residential
area.

The potential for up to 168 HGV
movements per day on this route will have
a significant impact on safety, noise, air
guality, and residential amenity. The
cumulative effect of this and other local
developments should therefore be carefully
assessed.

KCC Highways have been consulted on the
planning application and have raised no
objection on highway grounds.

Highway safety, noise and air quality have
been assessed to ensure no impact on
nearby residential amenity.

The planning permission imposes a noise
restriction (condition 23), with the EA issued
Permit for the site requiring noise emissions
from activities to be free from noise at levels
likely to cause pollution.

Lympne Parish Council respectfully
requests that these comments are taken
into consideration before any decision is
made on this variation. In particular, the
Council seeks clarification and reassurance
on:
* The inclusion and management of black
bag waste;
* Mitigation for excess vehicle arrivals
and potential queuing on the A20;
* The cumulative odour and traffic
impact on both existing and future
residents and visitors.

See comments above.

When these details were provided to Lympne Parish Council a date was set out by
which they should respond, otherwise it would be assumed that this additional detail
has resolved their concerns. No further comments have been received as such it is
considered that the Parish Council have no objections to the application.

Stanford Parish Council — no comments received.

KCC Highways and Transportation — raises no objection and makes the following

comments:

The proposal seeks to make amendments to the approved application, which include:
revised office location, revised weighbridge location, revised cycle store and additional

HGV parking.

Page 18

C1.14




Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Condition 24 restricts the hours of deliveries between 0700 to 1800 Monday to Friday
and 0700 to 1300 on Saturdays.

Condition 28 restricts the total number of vehicle movements to 168 two-way
movements.

The submitted details confirm that no changes are to take place to these arrangements
as a result of the current S73 application.

It is noted that the application seeks to align the waste streams with the Environmental
Permit which remains unchanged at 75,000 tonnes per annum | am minded to accept
that the proposed S73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 will not have a
material impact on the local highway network. Therefore, | am minded to accept that
the above conditions are varied.

KCC Flood and Water Management (as Lead Local Flood Authority) — raises no
objection and state that:

it is noted that none of the referenced conditions pertain to surface water. Furthermore,
the submission confirms that 'approved details will continue to be adhered to,’
indicating that the previously approved Surface and Foul Drainage Scheme remains in
effect.

KCC Public Rights of Way (East Kent PROW Team) — no comments to make on the
application.

National Planning Casework Unit — no comments received.

Folkestone & Hythe District Council Environmental Health Officer — no comments
received.

Environment Agency (Kent Area) — no objection but provides the following
comments:

The revised locations of infrastructure and the additional HGV parking do not require
comment from us as they are not in a Flood Zone.

The change to the types of waste to be imported is more of a permitting issue and
seems to have already been permitted as stated in the submitted Environmental
Statement Addendum by SLR. The minor revision from the currently approved
commercial and industrial (C&l) waste stream to include a small amount of household
waste to be handled in the MRF seeks to align the planning permission with the EA
Environmental Permit for the site and will provide a contingency for Local Authority
waste disposal.

Kent County Council Ecological Advice Service - raises no objection and makes
the following comments:

A badger survey has been submitted and it has confirmed that there continues to be a
main sett within the SE corner of the site and evidence of a sett on the southern
boundary which at the time of the survey was considered unoccupied.

We advise that an insufficient survey has been submitted to demonstrate that the
second sett is unoccupied as there would be a need for a camera survey to have been
carried out. However we accept that updated surveys are not required.

C1.15
Page 19



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

29.

30.

We have reviewed the proposed layout and it appears that landscaping is proposed
within the areas adjacent to the setts (both active and considered disused). Satellite
imagery (dated September 2025) suggests that the majority of the site, bar the wooded
boundary, is bare ground.

We therefore assume that only landscaping works would be implemented within that
area, there would be no piling or trenches within 30m of the known setts for the
proposed buildings.

We advise that the landscaping works must be carried out under supervision of an
ecologist. Based on this assumption we are satisfied that no further badger surveys
are required.

We recommend that a detailed landscaping plan is submitted as a condition if planning
permission is granted. We recommend that the landscaping is designed to benefit
foraging badgers.

Natural England — no comments to make on the application.

Kent Downs National Landscape — no comments to make on the application but
reminds the County Planning Authority of their obligations under the new statutory duty
to seek to further the purpose of conserving and enhancing the natural beauty of
National Landscapes. The Kent Downs National Landscape team recommends that to
help fulfil the new statutory duty, the County Planning Authority should ensure that the
decision is consistent with relevant national and local planning policy and takes into
account the aims, objectives and principles set out in the Kent Downs AONB
Management Plan and its associated guidance documents.

Local Members

31. The local County Member for Elham Valley — Christopher Hespe, and adjoining
Member for Hythe West - Peter Osborne were notified of the application on 16
September 2025. No comments have been received.

Publicity

32. The application was publicised by the posting of a site notice, and an advertisement in
a local newspaper (Folkestone & Hythe Express, 25 September 2025).

Representations

33. One letter of representation has been received which set out the following:

Work to implement the Material Waste Recycling Facility (MRF) started in February
this year (2025). | note now that a large (size of a house), silver, cylindrical tank has
appeared next to the completed MRF, close to the A20. This is not on any published
plans. The development’s impact on the landscape was an important consideration
when determining the application. Has the addition of the tank been approved?

When the current application was originally submitted 3 x proposed water tanks were
shown on the submitted plans. These tanks are a requirement of the Environmental

C1.16
Page 20



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

Permitting regime which requires that an EA approved site-specific Fire Prevention
Plan (FPP) be in place to minimise and extinguish fire in a possible fire event. The
applicant has since decided to replace the 3 tanks with 1 large tank holding the same
overall capacity (600m?). The use of the tank provides a more efficient water discharge
for the site’s fire suppression system in accordance with the EA approved plan. The
revised site plan showing the single tank can be seen on the plans on page C1.4 and
for the revised tank on page C.1.5. | will comment further on the proposed water tank
in the discussion below.

Discussion

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) requires that
applications are determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. Therefore the proposal needs to be considered in
the context of the Development Plan Policies, the National Planning Policy Framework,
National Planning Policy for Waste and other Government Policy and any other
material planning considerations. In considering this proposal the planning policies
outlined in paragraphs 13-17 above are particularly relevant.

The proposed development is seeking to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of
SH/08/124, a consented waste management development, in order to make changes
to the approved site layout, including adjustments to the locations of the office,
weighbridge and cycle parking, additional HGV parking to improve internal circulation
and avoid queuing on the A20. No changes are proposed to the site boundary, access
arrangements, or the maximum number of HGV movements, which remains restricted
to 168 per day. All previously approved details including, amongst others, drainage,
landscaping and contamination investigations remain unchanged.

The key element of the application is the proposed revision to the permitted waste
streams to now include an element of household (black bag) waste importation to the
Materials Recycling Facility (MRF), to complement the already approved commercial
and industrial waste, mixed recycling and green waste imports. The total MRF
throughput would remain capped at 75,000 tonnes per annum (tpa) as required by
condition 33 of SH/08/124, as such there would be no increase in waste volumes over
what is already permitted.

The application is being reported to the Planning Applications Committee as result of
the objection from Sellindge Parish Council, no other objections have been received.

KMWLP Policies CSW1 and the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) reflect
sustainable development objectives and provide for applications for waste
development that accord with the development plan to be approved without delay,
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The original application (SH/08/124) fell within the description of paragraph 11(b) of
Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment)
Regulations 1999 (Installations for the Disposal of Waste) and was deemed to be EIA
development as it was considered that the application would be likely to have
significant effects on the environment because of its nature, size and location. The
application was accompanied by an Environmental Statement (ES). The Town and
Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 are clear that

C1.17
Page 21



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

if a Section 73 application is submitted that seeks to vary an application that was
originally considered EIA development, then an ES must also accompany the new
application. The ES Addendum received with the application has been assessed and
considered appropriate to enable the Planning Authority to determine the application.

The key material planning considerations in this case include:

e Principle & Need, including consideration of the strategic settlement, Otterpool
Park;

e Transportation Matters;

o Amenity incorporating Heritage Matters;

e Landscape and Visual Impact incorporating Design and Siting Considerations;
and

e Existing controls.

Principle & Need

Paragraphs 7-14 of the NPPF (2025) sets out national policy on achieving sustainable
development, including the three overarching objectives (economic, social and
environmental), which are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually
supportive ways. The presumption in favour of sustainable development means
approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay. Paragraph 85 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should help
create the conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and adapt. Significant
weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth and productivity,
considering both local business needs and wider opportunities for development.

The NPPF requires planning decisions to ensure new development can integrate with
existing business. Where there are significant adverse effects the applicant should be
required to provide suitable mitigation as part of the development and before the
development is completed. The focus of planning policies and decisions should be on
whether proposed development is an acceptable use of land, rather than the control of
processes or emissions (where these are subject to separate pollution control regimes,
as in this case where an Environmental Permit would be monitored and enforced by
the Environment Agency). Planning decisions should assume that these regimes will
operate effectively, and Members should note that the applicant has secured a new
Environmental Permit to take into account the changes proposed in this application.

Policy CSW1 of the adopted KMWLP sets out that when considering waste
development proposals the Council will take a positive approach that reflects the
presumption in favour of sustainable development contained in the National Planning
Policy Framework.

Policy CSW2 of the adopted KMWLP requires developments to help drive waste to
ascend the Waste Hierarchy whenever possible to aid the delivery of sustainable
waste management solutions for Kent. Policy CSW2 also requires proposals for waste
management to demonstrate how the proposed capacity will ensure that waste to be
managed at the facility will be managed at the highest level of the waste hierarchy as
practicable.

C1.18
Page 22



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

The application of the Waste Hierarchy is a legal requirement under the Waste
(England and Wales) Regulations 2011. It seeks to ensure that waste is managed
sustainably and ranks waste management options according to what is best for the
environment. In the UK, the waste hierarchy prioritises waste management options as
follows:

a) Prevention: Avoid creating waste in the first place.

b) Preparation for re-use: Reuse products and packaging.
c) Recycling: Recycle materials.

d) Other Recovery: Use waste for energy recovery.

e) Disposal: Landfill as last resort.

The premise of the operation is to help drive waste up the waste hierarchy.

Housing growth across Kent is increasing demand for facilities to provides waste
disposal capacity, including additional black bag waste capacity, with many existing
facilities now needing replacement or expansion. The need for a new waste transfer
site to address the critical lack of capacity within the Folkestone and Hythe District was
identified in the evidence base for the KCC 3 Developer Contribution Guide —
Appendix 18 Waste Disposal and Recycling. This planning application to allow a
proportion of the existing permitted capacity to be made available for black bag waste
could go some way towards meeting the planned growth in the Folkestone and Hythe
district including for the proposed Otterpool Park Development should it be built out.

Otterpool Park Development

Before discussing the main issues of this proposal, it is important to outline the current
situation regarding the land surrounding the application site. The site is located at the
centre of a proposed new town development, known as the Otterpool Park
Development, which is allocated in the local plan for a new garden settlement (Policies
SS6-SS9 of the Folkestone and Hythe District Council Core Strategy Review 2022).
An outline planning application for the development of the new garden settlement was
considered by the District Council in April 2023, and a resolution to grant outline
planning permission was agreed on 4 April 2023, subject to the completion of a legal
agreement to secure highway improvements and community infrastructure, among
other matters, and the final decision being notified to the Secretary of State.
Negotiations between the various parties to the legal agreement are ongoing and it
has yet to be completed.

The Otterpool Park development proposal comprises 8,500 homes; up to 29,000 m? of
retail and related uses; up to 87,500 m? of employment floor space, including
commercial business hubs, a commercial business park, and a light industrial park; up
to 67,000 m? of education and community facilities; up to 8,500 m? of hotel floor space;
and 8,500 m? of leisure floor space. The build-out of the Otterpool development would
take place in phases over an estimated period of 30 years, with details pursuant to the
outline consent required for each phase. The existence of an extant planning
permission for the permitted waste facility at Otterpool Quarry is recognised in the
Folkestone & Hythe Core Strategy, and the outline application includes two alternative
parameter plans, one incorporating retention of the waste facility and one without it.

Notwithstanding this, | note the District Council’s concerns regarding the potential
impact of KMWLP Policies CSW16 and DM8 and the buffer zone required between the

C1.19
Page 23



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

51.

52.

53.

Otterpool Quarry site and the proposed development areas. | also note that FHDC
have concluded that if the Waste Planning Authority is satisfied that the proposal to
accept household waste would not require the 250m buffer zone to be extended, then
this would address their concerns. | further note Sellindge Parish Council’'s comment
regarding a lack of consideration in the application of the cumulative impacts with the
Otterpool Park development.

In respect of these considerations, | am mindful that whilst, there is a resolution to
permit the Otterpool Park development, there is currently no planning permission in
place, nor are there finalised plans in place for the development. | also note that
further changes are proposed to the Otterpool Park application, which will be
submitted and considered by the District Council later this year. Without detailed
Otterpool Park plans in place, it is not possible to definitively say what the buffer width
would need to be, so | would advise that the 250m baseline as set out by KMWLP
Policies CSW16 and DM8 is the appropriate buffer at this time. This distance has
been accepted by the Planning Inspectorate when examining the KMWLP
safeguarding policies as an appropriate tool and distance to consider impacts from
potential competing land uses. In the future and once detailed information is available
for the Otterpool Park development, it may be possible to reduce the buffer.

Crucially though, the 250m buffer zone would be the same with or without the current
planning application to amend the waste types that is before Members. Only when
detailed plans are prepared for the Otterpool Park development will it be possible to
assess the developments together. As the application before the County Council is
likely to be determined first, in my view, the onus is upon the District Council to have
regard to the waste management site and any approved development at Otterpool
Quarry, when considering subsequent final residential plans. This is provided for in
the parameter plans that form part of the current Otterpool Park application.

Figure 1 below highlights the former Otterpool Quarry site (CP3) and shows the 250m
buffer zone in all directions. Members will note that the 250m buffer zone extends
from the boundary of the former Otterpool Quarry, not the site boundary approved by
SH/08/124, as such the buffer zones towards proposed residential areas to the
northwest and west would be well in excess of 250m. Sites to the south west would
also have existing woodland located in between.

C1.20
Page 24



Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

Figure 1.
Park
L L /
e ad® 18 “ a *u
at - $ES 2y
’ & 4 4 5 . " ol FON |
.‘i RiversioPark # Castle Park ~‘a§ TC.Z'
L 4 >
. " < F *,'Q HF.2
[} Barrow Hill ] ) 4  } rs
Green i C4 y

v RS.1 A
g a” »
e
CP.3 4 o
SOy TC ™
e @ ~ o
Otterpool '":.,4 . )\
Country Park g . cad " =
o? cP.2 & TC6
P1 & CP.5
& &
"
... r )
AP.1 ..—-.'-_-'
1 —— :
a

54. Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan (KMWLP) Policies CSW16 and DM 8 recognise
that existing waste management sites should be protected and it is important these
sites are not sterilised or lost, especially in light of the current and projected house
building within the District. It is recognised that the Otterpool Park development is an
allocated site within the Local Plan, however, | am also conscious that a waste
management consent has existed on the Otterpool Quarry site prior to the Local Plan
allocation and was therefore considered in the District Council’s local plan work to
allocate the site and in preparing the current planning application. Whilst details of the
Otterpool Park development are not yet consented, it is important to find a way for
neighbouring land uses to satisfactorily coexist together. Positively, there are
numerous examples across the County where it has been demonstrated that it is
possible for waste operations to successfully coexist alongside residential properties,
not least at the current waste operation at Ross Way, Folkestone.

55. Condition 33 of the approved planning permission SH/08/124 limits the import of waste
to site to 75,000tpa. It is considered that the site layout demonstrates that the site is of
adequate size and arrangement to accommodate the facility proposed and enable safe
and efficient access, turning and egress of vehicles. | am also mindful that in the event
that this application is refused, the approved Anaerobic Digestion (AD) plant could still
be constructed which in itself is permitted to import an additional 20,000tpa of waste,
albeit within the same overall limit on daily HGV movements. Indeed it is noted that
SH/08/124 was approved on the basis that a total of 95,000tpa of waste could be
imported to the site.

56. | understand that it is not anticipated that the AD plant will be brought forward so the
overall envelope of waste imports is likely to be the approved 75,000tpa for the MRF
activity. However, a 95,000tpa waste management activity, along with the respective
transport and amenity impacts was considered acceptable in planning terms.
Notwithstanding the proposed strategic site, this is the consented fallback position for

C1.21
Page 25



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

57.

the waste management activity on the site. There is policy support for the provision of
sustainable waste management facilities and the need for an additional waste transfer
facility to accommodate growth within Folkestone and Hythe district has long been
identified. Continued growth within the district, and with the 8,500 additional houses
proposed for the adjacent new garden settlement that need will be even greater. | am
content that subject to the consideration of the development against other relevant
Development Plan policies and material considerations, including those set out below,
the changes proposed for the MRF facility would receive in principle support. The
proposed development is considered to be in line with national and local planning
policy and is in terms of principle, need and sustainability considered to be acceptable.

Given that there is no requirement in KMWLP policy or national planning policy to
demonstrate need for additional capacity, and KMWLP policy is enabling of new
capacity, | consider that the proposal would be in accordance with KMWLP Policies
CSW2 and CSWA4. | therefore give this significant weight. Should Members approve
the application | recommend that, save for conditions being varied, all the existing
controls of SH/08/124 be reimposed, however, it is still necessary to assess the
application in terms of transportation, amenity matters (incorporating heritage),
landscape and visual impact (incorporating design and siting considerations) and the
existing controls in place.

Transportation Matters

58.

59.

60.

The NPPF and National Planning Practice Guide (NPPG) collectively emphasise the
importance of ensuring that developments are appropriately located and designed to
support sustainable transport modes, minimise traffic impacts, and maintain highway
safety. In particular, paragraph 116 of the NPPF states that development should only
be refused on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact (on
highway safety) or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be
severe.

In addition to national guidance, the KMWLP, including policies CSW6 and

DM13, promote sustainable transport solutions for waste development, encouraging
the use of routes that minimise environmental and community impacts, and requiring
proposals to demonstrate safe and suitable access arrangements, for the sustainable
transport of minerals and waste. Folkestone & Hythe Places and Policies Local Plan
and Folkestone & Hythe Core Strategy Review policies also support infrastructure that
aligns with strategic growth while safeguarding transport networks from undue
pressure, particularly in rural and edge-of-settlement locations. This includes detailed
development management criteria, including the need for transport assessments and
mitigation measures where development may impact highway capacity or safety.
Collectively, these policies require that waste related proposals are well integrated with
the existing transport infrastructure, do not compromise highway safety, and contribute
positively to the district’s spatial and environmental objectives.

I acknowledge that Sellindge Parish Council are concerned about the risk of HGV
queuing and highway safety onto the A20 and that the site layout drawing confirms
that only "9 HGV parking spaces” are provided within the operational area. | can
confirm that the development actually proposes 14 spaces in total, an increase of 5
over that which was originally approved, see the site plan on page C1.4. The
application proposes no change over the already approved vehicle numbers and the
existing condition controlling vehicles numbers would not change.

C1.22
Page 26



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

61.

62.

63.

64.

KMWLP Policy DM13 requires proposals for waste development to demonstrate that
emissions associated with road transport are minimised, and where road transport is
required that: (1) they demonstrate that access arrangements are safe and appropriate
and traffic is not detrimental to road safety; (2) that the highway network can
accommodate traffic flows, that traffic doesn’t have an adverse effect on the
environment or community; and (3) emission reduction measures are taken including
scheduling movements to avoid peak hours. The site is not in, or in close proximity to,
an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA).

Kent County Council Highways & Transportation were consulted on the application
and do not object or raise concerns about vehicle movements or highways safety.
This also complies with Policies T2 and T4 of the Folkestone & Hythe Places and
Policies Local Plan.

Given there would be no increase in vehicle movements from the consented
development and KCC Highways & Transportation have no objection to the proposed
development. | consider that the proposed access arrangements are safe and
appropriate, and that the highway network is able to accommodate these traffic flows.
Moreover | am also mindful that the proposal increases the number of HGV parking
spaces on site by 5, further reducing the risks of vehicles impacting the public
highway. Members should also note that the overall numbers of HGV movements has
already been considered and approved by SH/08/124 and the existing condition 28
restricting movements to 168 (84in/84out) would not change.

Therefore, | consider that the proposed development would be in accordance with
KMWLP Policy DM13 and consistent with the locational criteria of KMWLP Policy
CSMB8 and Policy CSW6 and KMWLP Policy DM11 in terms of unacceptable adverse
impacts on road safety or congestion from traffic. It would also be consistent with
National Planning Policy for Waste (NPPW) and the locational criterion (f) regarding
suitability of the road network and policies T2 and T4 of the Folkestone & Hythe Places
and Policies Local Plan.

Amenity incorporating Heritage Matters

65.

66.

National planning policy, as set out in the NPPF and NPPW, requires that the effects
of pollution—including air quality, dust, and odour—on health, the natural environment,
and local amenity are considered in planning decisions. The NPPF emphasises that
the focus of planning policies and decisions should be on whether a proposed
development is an acceptable use of land, rather than the control of emissions or
processes where these are subject to separate pollution control regimes. Planning
decisions should assume that these regimes will operate effectively.

The NPPW reinforces this approach, highlighting the importance of locating and
designing waste facilities to minimise emissions and impacts on sensitive receptors. It
also recognises the role of the environmental permitting regime (regulated and
monitored by the Environment Agency) which operates alongside planning to regulate
emissions and ensure operational compliance.

Local planning policy supports the protection of public health and amenity from air
pollution, dust, and odour. The KMWLP requires waste proposals to demonstrate
effective control of emissions to air and to avoid unacceptable impacts on nearby uses.
KMWLP Policy DM11 provides for waste development where it is demonstrated that
there are unlikely to be unacceptable adverse impacts from odour emissions to air and

C1.23
Page 27



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

67.

68.

from noise and vibration. The FHDC Core Strategy promotes development that
maintains high environmental standards, while the FHDC Local Plan includes policies
requiring that proposals do not result in adverse effects on the amenity of occupiers or
the surrounding area.

The application is supported by the site’s updated Odour Management Plan (OMP)
approved by the Environment Agency under the revised Environmental Permit and this
details the proposed inclusion of black bag waste imports. The OMP recognises that
activities at the MRF may result in the release of fugitive odour emissions, which have
the potential to diminish amenity in the local area and as such sets out the measures
to control activities at the facility in order to prevent or mitigate potential odours. The
OMP provides a proactive approach to the effective management of odour during site
operations. The OMP sets out the potential sources of odour at the facility, the
measures in place to control odour generation and monitor releases, and the
management and monitoring actions that will be undertaken. The determination of
receptor sensitivity and odour emission magnitude has been determined with
reference to the Institute of Air Quality Management (IAQM) Guidance on the
Assessment of Odour for Planning.

The submitted OMP sets out a series of odour mitigation measures which would be
employed at the site, these are summarised as follows:

Site Design and Containment

The MRF is fully enclosed, providing primary odour containment

Fast-acting roller shutter doors, preventing through-draughts; kept closed except for vehicle
movements

Impermeable flooring and sealed drainage system across the building

Passive ventilation via louvres considered sufficient due to short waste retention times

Waste Storage & Management

All waste stored inside the enclosed MRF building

Segregated, clearly labelled bays and enclosed containers for different waste streams
(general waste, food waste, green waste, clinical waste, sharps etc)

Maximum retention times to avoid decomposition:
o General waste: < 5 days (typically 2—3 days)
FIFO (First-In First-Out) system to prevent long-term accumulation

Maximum on-site storage limits enforced: up to 1,500 tonnes total; food and clinical waste
capped at 50 tonnes each

Operational Controls

Visual inspection of all loads upon arrival and during tipping; non-compliant or abnormal loads
rejected or isolated

Highly odorous loads prioritised for rapid tipping to reduce exposure
Sheeted or sealed vehicles

Good housekeeping regime, including:

C1.24
Page 28



Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

o Daily sweeping
o Weekly wash-downs
o Immediate spill clean-up (and logging of incident)
o Regular litter-picking
o Odour masking sprays installed within the MRF building

e Backup machinery available to prevent operational delays that could lead to prolonged waste
storage

Monitoring & Inspections

e Routine boundary sniff testing following the Environment Agency guidance within ‘Odour
Management: comply with your environmental permit’ published 3 December 2025.
Increased frequency if issues arise.

o Regular checks on:
o Door operation
o Waste volumes vs permitted maximum
o  Condition of containers and bays

o Meteorological data (wind direction/speed, temperature) logged when complaints arise or
during investigations

o Comprehensive daily and weekly records, including operational issues, inspections, odour
detections, and remedial actions.

Contingency Measures

e Procedures in place for abnormal events, including:
o Power failure — doors closed manually, operations suspended, deliveries diverted
o Door damage — rapid contractor response
o Flooding — rapid waste removal, potential cessation of operations
o Staff shortages — stop receiving waste
o Extreme weather — snow clearance, waste diversion
e Upon odour detection at the perimeter:
o Immediate investigation to identify source
o Implementation of corrective actions
o Follow-up monitoring until odour ceases-up monitoring until odour ceases

Complaint Handling & Community Engagement

e Dedicated public contact number available
e Complaints logged using formal Odour Complaint Form and investigated promptly
e Feedback provided to complainant and EA updated as required

o Continued engagement with local community, including updates if odour issues are
anticipated.

C1.25
Page 29



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

69.

70.

71.

72.

Whilst | note the odour concerns raised by Sellindge Parish Council, it is not
considered that the introduction of black bag waste as a proportion of the overall
approved throughputs, would result in materially different impacts to the currently
approved waste types. The waste is proposed to be deposited within an enclosed
building, only when the doors are shut and there would be no external storage of
waste permitted. | am also aware that the applicant has varied its Environmental
Permit with the Environment Agency to account for this change and would have to
comply with the Odour Management Plan (including the controls set out above)
approved by that Permit, and as such | am satisfied that there would not be overriding
concerns in odour terms to warrant refusal of the planning application. Furthermore,
there would be no overnight operations, or operations after 1pm on Saturdays, and at
any time on Sundays or Bank and Public Holidays and as such odour impacts would
be negligible at these times.

| am also mindful that the base permission SH/08/124 permitted an Anaerobic
Digestion (AD) Plant, and whilst | understand that this is not proposed to be brought
forward at this time, the applicant is within their rights to complete this

development. Whilst there would not be a detrimental amenity impact as a result of
the AD plant becoming operational, | am mindful that these plants can generate a low
level of continual odour, and the AD plant can operate 24 hours a day (the controls
over deliveries of waste for the AD plant are the same as the MRF though), as such,
and when looked at in combination with the proposal to allows imports of up to
25,000tpa of black bag waste, | do not consider that there would be any overriding
odour concerns should the MRF operate in accordance with the mitigation measures
set out in the OMP and Environmental Permit.

I note that the EA had no objection to the proposed changes in waste throughputs to
the site and no comments have been received from the FHDC Environmental Health
Officer and as such, and based on the proposed odour mitigation measures set out
above, there are no compelling reasons to raise an objection to the proposed
development on the grounds of odour. In order to ensure the development is in
accordance with KMWLP Policy CSW4 and Policy DM11 | recommend that the
existing conditions in relation to the site operating in accordance with the approved
odour mitigation measures be updated to include the new Odour Management Plan. It
would also be consistent with National Planning Policy for Waste (NPPW) locational
criterion (h) in that potential adverse odour emissions can be controlled through use of
appropriate and well-maintained equipment. | consider that the proposed development
would not generate unacceptable adverse impacts from odour as a result of the
proposed importation of black-bag waste and so would be in accordance with KMWLP
Policy DM11.

Paragraph 207 of the NPPF states that in determining applications, local planning
authorities should require an applicant to describe the significance of any heritage
assets affected, including any contribution made by their setting. The level of detail
should be proportionate to the assets’ importance and no more than is sufficient to
understand the potential impact of the proposal on their significance. Paragraph 210
states that in determining applications, local planning authorities should take account
of the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and
putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation. Policy DM5 of the Kent
MWLP states that proposed developments should result in no unacceptable adverse
impact on Kent’s historic environment. Whilst | note that there are two Grade Il Listed
Buildings, within 250m of the site, | am also aware that the impact on these was

C1.26
Page 30



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

73.

74.

considered at the time of the original application. There would be no significant
changes to the amount of built development on site as a result of this application, and
as such, | do not consider there to be any further impact on these buildings to that
which has already been considered.

No objections have been received from consultees, on heritage grounds and | am
satisfied that this application would not have an overriding negative impact on any
heritage assets, and it would accord with the NPPF and KMWLP in relation to
conservation and heritage assets.

Members should note that all other matters relating to amenity in terms of noise and
dust were considered at the time of the original application and it is not considered that
there will be any discernible change as result of this planning application now, the only
further consideration is with regards the introduction of a proportion of black bag waste
imports, totalling 25,000tpa of the overall 75,000tpa (the overall limit of 75,000 tpa
which would not change as a result of this application).

Landscape and Visual Impact incorporating Design and Siting Considerations

75.

76.

77.

Policy DM1 of the KMWLP states that proposals for waste development will be
required to demonstrate that they have been designed in accordance with best
practice to protect and enhance the character and quality of the site's setting or
mitigate and if necessary compensate for any predicted loss. Policy DM2 of the
KMWLP states that proposed developments will be required to ensure that there is no
unacceptable adverse impact on the integrity, character, appearance and function of
sites of international, national and local importance.

Whilst the site is not located within the Kent Downs National Landscape it does range
between 2km to 1.2km from its boundaries. The NPPF requires great weight to be
given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty of National
Landscapes and states the scale and extent of development within these areas should
be limited (also applicable to the setting of such landscapes). It states permission
should be refused for major development other than in exceptional circumstances, and
where it can be demonstrated that the development is in the public interest.
Consideration of such applications should include an assessment of:

a) the need for the development, including in terms of any national considerations,
and the impact of permitting it, or refusing it, upon the local economy;

b) the cost of, and scope for, developing outside the designated area, or meeting
the need for it in some other way; and

c) any detrimental effect on the environment, the landscape and recreational
opportunities, and the extent to which that could be moderated.

It should also be noted that Section 245 of the Levelling-up and Regeneration Act
2023 places a duty on relevant authorities (including local planning authorities) to seek
to further the statutory purposes of a National Landscapes in England in exercising
their functions. This duty also applies to proposals outside the designated area but
impacting on its natural beauty. The Department for the Environment, Food and Rural
Affairs (DEFRA) published new guidelines in December 2024 - “Guidance for relevant
authorities on seeking to further the purposes of Protected Landscapes”, which
requires the relevant authority to take active steps to explore appropriate, reasonable
and proportionate measures which further the statutory purposes of protected

C1.27
Page 31



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

78.

79.

80.

landscapes. There are only very minor changes to the permitted built developments on
site, and full consideration of landscape impacts were made at the time of the original
application, and considered to be acceptable. | am satisfied that the proposed changes
on site would not constitute any discernible change of impact upon the National
Landscape over what has already been considered acceptable in planning terms.

In addition to the change in waste type to incorporate a household waste stream that
can be managed at the site, the proposed development proposes a number of
relatively minor changes to the approved layout and these include the following:

Relocation of the:

o  Approved office building to move further south from the northern boundary to be
adjacent to the MRF building.

° Weighbridge to move further south away from the site entrance.

° Cycle store to be located between the western site boundary and the office
building.

o Additional 5 HGV parking spaces.

o New water tank immediately adjacent to the northern fagade of the MRF.

| am satisfied that the proposed design and layout changes and the changes in waste
type would have negligible implications in landscape terms. The overall site layout,
building forms, and massing remain largely unchanged, the existing structures would
not be of a different scale, height or external appearance that might affect landscape
views, and there would be no extension of the site boundaries or encroachment into
new landscape areas. The location of the approved existing buildings (MRF, AD plant
and Finished Product Building) would remain the same as was previously assessed at
the time of the original application. In addition the proposed changes including
additional HGV parking spaces, the weighbridge to be moved further south into a more
central site location and away from the site entrance, would further reduce the
potential for vehicles backing up towards the site when entering the facility; and the
office building would move further south to be adjacent to the MRF and thus
concentrating the built development in this area into a more cohesive unit; all of which
are considered measures that would represent an amelioration of the existing
permission.

The applicant has also provided revised information pertaining to the originally
proposed (x3) water tanks. These tanks are a requirement of the Environmental
Permitting regime which requires that an EA approved site-specific Fire Prevention
Plan (FPP) be in place to minimise and extinguish fire in a possible fire event. Three
water tanks were originally proposed and the applicant has since decided to replace
the 3 tanks with 1 large tank holding the same overall capacity (500m?). The use of the
tank provides a more efficient water discharge for the site’s fire suppression system in
accordance with the EA approved plan. The tank can be seen on the site plan on page
C1.4, the tank has been installed and the applicant is now seeking retrospective
approval for it as part of this application. The tank, whilst large in size, sits adjacent to
the northern fagade of the MRF, it does not extend beyond either the sides of MRF
building or above the roofline. It is currently finished in galvanised steel and | would
recommend that a condition be included that requires the tank to receive the same
colour treatment (green) as the MRF building. This would ensure that the potential
impacts in landscape terms of the tank to be negligible and it would be virtually
indistinguishable when considered within the context of the building and the existing

C1.28
Page 32



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

81.

82.

83.

84.

boundary landscaping. Should Members be minded to approve the application, |
recommend a condition be included that requires the tank to receive the same external
colour treatment as the MRF building.

The KCC Ecological Advice Service (EAS) were consulted on the application and have
acknowledged that some minor landscaping works are proposed within the areas
adjacent to known badger setts (both active and considered disused) in the southwest
corner of the site. Badger Satellite imagery (dated September 2025) suggests that the
majority of the site, bar the wooded boundary, is bare ground. Additional badger
mitigation measures were approved under planning permission KCC/SH/0095/2015.
The landscaping works would be implemented only within that area and there would
be no piling or trenches, associated with the approved buildings, within 30m of the
known setts. KCC EAS have advised that landscaping works must be carried out
under supervision of an ecologist and on this basis are satisfied that no further badger
surveys are required. They further recommend that a landscaping plan is submitted as
a condition if planning permission is granted this must be designed to benefit foraging
badgers. | recommend that Members approve this additional condition.

The development must also be considered in the context of the Otterpool Park Local
Plan allocation, which benefits from a resolution to grant outline planning permission
by Folkestone & Hythe District Council. While it cannot be guaranteed that Otterpool
Park will come forward, the planning status and associated infrastructure proposals
suggest it is reasonable to assume its delivery. This would result in major
redevelopment of land surrounding the site and with this in mind, the proposed
development would also be considered acceptable.

| am satisfied as a result of the site layout changes proposed, that the landscape and
visual impacts, taking into account the existing approved landscaping and the
enhanced landscape scheme and colour treatment of the water tank that the impact of
the development would be acceptable. The proposal would meet the duty to further the
statutory purposes of the National Landscape by mitigating impacts to an appropriate
level that protects its setting.

Therefore, based on the above assessment of the proposals and noting no objections
were received on landscaping grounds, | am satisfied that the proposed development
would not give rise to an unacceptable effect on any landscape related planning
designations and the proposed changes to the site layout are also considered
acceptable. Overall, there is no reason why the landscape and visual effects arising
from the proposed development should be regarded as unacceptable. No objections
have been received from technical consultees and on this basis, | would not raise any
objections on landscape and visual amenity grounds subject to the conditions
discussed above. | am satisfied therefore that the proposed development would be
acceptable in landscape and visual impact terms and accords with the NPPF, Kent
Minerals and Waste Local Plan and as such, | am satisfied that the development
accords with relevant development plan policies relating to landscape and visual
considerations.

Existing Controls

85.

All other matters relating to planning considerations outside those discussed above
would remain in force and controlled by the existing conditions on SH/08/124. These

C1.29
Page 33



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

86.

conditions would be reimposed in full should permission be granted for this application.
These include, but are not limited to:

Fencing and lighting;
Surface water drainage;
Contamination;

Air Quality;

Noise;

Operating hours;

Daily HGV movements;
All vehicles to be sheeted;
No waste to be tipped into the reception building until such time that the doors are
closed; and

o Waste throughput levels.

None of these matters previously approved by SH/08/124 would change as a result of
this planning application and given these matters were previously assessed and
considered by Members at the time of the original application, | am satisfied that there
is no requirement for further consideration of them now.

Conclusion

87.

88.

89.

90.

The application seeks to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning permission
SH/08/124 to allow throughputs of up to 25,000tpa of black bag waste, within the
existing consented threshold of 75,000tpa. Alongside a series of minor amendments
to the approved site layout, including a new water tank, adjustments to the locations of
the office, weighbridge and cycle parking and 5 additional HGV parking spaces.

The site is a permitted waste management facility under SH/08/124 and the MRF
building has largely been constructed, although it is not yet operational. There is no
requirement in KMWLP policy or national planning policy to demonstrate need for
additional capacity, in this case for additional black bag waste, and it is noted that
KMWLP policy is enabling of new capacity. | consider that the proposal would be in
accordance with KMWLP Policies CSW2 and CSW4, through contributing to and
maintaining provision of capacity and for moving waste management up the waste
hierarchy. Should Members approve the application | recommend that, save for
conditions being varied and suggested new conditions as aforementioned, that all the
existing controls of SH/08/124 be reimposed, as set out below.

No objections were received from Kent County Council Highways & Transportation on
highway safety grounds or on impacts to the road network. Therefore | consider that
the highway network is able to continue to accommodate the approved traffic flows
and access is safe and appropriate to the scale of movements. It is also noted that the
existing planning controls over the number of HGV movements would continue i.e. 168
(84in/840ut) HGV movements in any one day.

The proposed development would introduce a new waste stream (black bag waste) to
the permitted MRF, which has the potential to generate additional odour. The
applicant has provided an updated Odour Management Plan, which has also been
approved by the EA for the operator’s updated Environmental Permit, this contains a
significant number of odour mitigation measures as set out above. | note that the EA

C1.30
Page 34



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

91.

92.

93.

94.

had no objection to the proposed changes and no comments have been received from
the FHDC Environmental Health Officer.

Odour emissions would be controlled adequately through the implementation of the
approved Odour Management Plan and | consider that the proposed development
would not generate unacceptable adverse impacts from odour as a result of the
proposed importation of black bag waste and so would be in accordance with KMWLP
Policy DM11. Members will recognise that the focus of planning decisions should be
on whether proposed development is an acceptable use of land, rather than the control
of processes or emissions (where these are subject to separate pollution control
regimes, as in this case where an Environmental Permit would be monitored and
enforced by the Environment Agency). As such, and based on the proposed odour
mitigation measures set out above, there are no compelling reasons to raise an
objection to the proposed development on the grounds of odour.

There are very minor changes to the permitted built development on site, and full
consideration of landscape impacts were made at the time of the original application,
and considered to be acceptable. | am satisfied that the proposed changes on site
would not constitute any discernible change of impact upon the National Landscape.
Indeed | am satisfied that the proposed layout changes would represent an
improvement in landscaping terms particularly by the relocation of the approved office
building close to the MRF building thus concentrating the built development into a
more cohesive unit. | note the introduction of the additional water tank to the northern
boundary of the MRF building would be an additional structure however, providing the
tank is finished in the same colour treatment as the adjacent MRF, | do not consider it
would generate any additional impact in landscaping terms. | am satisfied as a result
of the site layout changes proposed, that the landscape and visual impacts, taking into
account the existing landscaping, the proposed additional landscape scheme, and
colour treatment of the water tank, would be acceptable.

Overall, there is no reason why the landscape and visual effects arising from the
proposed development should be regarded as unacceptable and | do not consider
there would be any impact on listed buildings, over and above what has already been
considered acceptable in planning terms. No objections have been received from
technical consultees and on this basis, | would not raise any objections on landscape
and visual amenity grounds subject to the conditions discussed above. | am satisfied
therefore that the proposed development would be acceptable in landscape visual
impact terms, and in matters of a heritage, and accords with the NPPF, Kent Minerals
and Waste Local Plan.

Whilst, there is a resolution to permit the Otterpool Park development, there is
currently no planning permission in place, nor are there finalised plans in place for the
development. Without detailed plans in place, it is not possible to definitively say what
the buffer would need to be between the proposed development and Otterpool Park,
so | am satisfied that the 250m baseline as set out by KMWLP Policies CSW16 and
DM8 is the appropriate buffer at this time. This distance has been accepted by the
Planning Inspectorate when examining the KMWLP safeguarding policies as an
appropriate tool and distance to consider impacts from potential competing land uses.
Importantly though, the 250m buffer zone would be the same with or without the
current planning application to amend the waste types that is before Members. Only
when detailed plans are prepared for the Otterpool Park development will it be
possible to assess the developments together. As the application before the County

C1.31
Page 35



Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

95.

96.

97.

Council is likely to be determined first, in my view, the onus is upon the District Council
to have regard to the waste management site and any approved development at
Otterpool Quarry, when considering subsequent final residential plans.

Members will also have noted that the 250m buffer zone extends from the boundary of
the former Otterpool Quarry, not the site boundary approved by SH/08/124, as such
the buffer zones towards proposed residential areas to the northwest and west would
be well in excess of 250m. Sites to the south west would also have existing woodland
located in between. As such | am satisfied that there are no compelling reasons to
refuse the application on the grounds of impacts on the future Otterpool Park
development.

Having considered the evidence submitted with the application and additional
information provided by the applicant during my consideration of the application, and
the recommendations of the technical consultees, | am satisfied that the application
would represent sustainable development and could be controlled by the imposition of
conditions, such that it would not have unacceptable or significant impacts on the local
land uses.

| am satisfied that, subject to the conditions included in my recommendation below, the
application accords with the development plan and there are no material planning
considerations that indicate the application should be refused. | therefore recommend
planning permission be granted and the relevant conditions of SH/08/124 be varied.

Recommendation

98.

| RECOMMEND that PERMISSION BE GRANTED, SUBJECT TO the reimposition of
the existing conditions from permission reference SH/08/124, amended as appropriate
(see full SH/08/124 decision notice below at Appendix 1), and changes to conditions 3,
21, 25 & 27 as set out below and the inclusion of the two additional conditions to
address landscaping and the water tank:

Amended Conditions

3. The development to which this permission relates, shall be carried out and
completed in all respects strictly in accordance with the submitted documents
and site layout drawing OP12 Rev. C dated September 2024 and LPCB
Approved Sprinkler Tank 500m? drawings (Sheets 1-4), together with any
subsequent amendments which may be approved by the Waste Planning
Authority.

21. Odour management shall be carried out in accordance with the mitigation
measures specified in section 5.4, pages 23 and 24, of the Air Quality
Assessment dated December 2007 and the Odour Management Plan (Version 3)
dated May 2024, and operate in accordance with a negative air pressure system
to prevent any fugitive emissions from any of the buildings proposed to be
erected on site.

25. The buildings hereby permitted shall not be used for any purpose other than
specified in the application documents set out in Schedule 1 and within the
Planning Application Statement (Revision: Final_v2) dated 12 May 2025, nor
shall the building(s) be altered to accommodate any other use, together with any

C1.32
Page 36



Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

subsequent amendment which may be approved by the Waste Planning
Authority.
27. No more than a total of:

32,000 tonnes per annum of Commercial & Industrial Waste;
25,000 tonnes per annum of Domestic Black Bag Waste;
11,500 tonnes per annum of Dry Mixed Recycling; and
6,500 tonnes per annum of Green Waste.

shall be imported to and processed at the MRF site in any calendar year.
Records detailing the quantities and nature of waste types imported to the site
shall be maintained for the life of the facilities hereby permitted and shall be
made available for inspection at any reasonable time following a request from
the Waste Planning Authority. The 20,000 tonnes per annum of compostable
waste permitted to be imported under condition 32 shall only be processed via
the Anaerobic Digestion Plant.

New Conditions

e Submission and approval in writing of a landscaping scheme to include
measures designed to benefit foraging badgers.
o Water tank to be finished in the same green colour treatment as the MRF.

| Case Officer: Adam Tomaszewski Tel. no: 03000 410434

| Background Documents: see section heading

C1.33
Page 37



Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent

TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

Appendix A - Planning Permission SH/08/124

Council
Countrystyle Recycling Ltd Planning Applications Group
¢/o SLR Consulting Ltd First Floor, Invicta House
Treenwood House §°9£t¥ H:"
Rowden Lane ’ Kent ME14 1XX
Bradford on Avon Fax: (01622) 221072
Wiltshire Tel: 08458 247303
BA15 2AU Website: www.kent.gov.uk/planning

Direct Dial/Ext; (01622) 221059
Texbox: 08458 247905(hearing impaired)
Ask for:
Your ref.
Our ref: PAG/AW/SH/08/124
Date: 28 March 2011

Notification of Grant of Permission to Develop Land
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACTS

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE)
(ENGLAND) ORDER 2010

Dear SirfMadam

APPLICATION NO: SH/08/124 - CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF A MATERIALS
RECYCLING FACILITY, ANAEROBIC DIGESTION PLANT AND ASSOCIATED OFFICE AND
PARKING FACILITIES AT OTTERPOOL QUARRY, ASHFORD ROAD, SELLINDGE,
ASHFORD, KENT,

The above mentioned 'proposal dated 27 December 2007 and accompanying submitted drawings,
for the formal observations of the County Council as County Planning Authority, as amplified and
amended by the details referred to in the attached schedule, has now received consideration.

| hereby inform you that the County Planning Authority under the Town and Country Planning
Acts, having taken environmental information submitted in suppert of the proposal into
consideration, on 15 March 2011, has GRANTED PERMISSION for development of the above
proposal, as amplified and amended, SUBJECT TO THE CONDITIONS SPECIFIED hereunder:-

(1)  Notwithstanding the provisions of part 4 of Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order, 1995 (or any Order amending, replacing or re-
enacting that Order), no fixed plant or machinery, buildings, or structures and erections shall
be located on site without the prior approval in writing of their siting, design and external
appearance by the Waste Planning Authority;

Reason: To protect the visual amenities of the area and minimise impact to accord
with the objectives of Kent Waste Local Plan Policy W25.

¢ Y INVESTORS
IN PEOPLE

v
000843

i
~ l,"

Page 38

C1.34




Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

(2) The development to which this permission relates shall pbe begun not later than the
expiration of 3 years beginning with the date of this permission. Written natification of the
date of commencement shall be provided to the Waste Planning Authority within 7 days of
such commencement,

Reason: To comply with section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended).

(3) The development to which this permission relates, shall be carried out and completed in all
respects strictly in accordance with the submitted documents and site layout drawing OP/4,
together with any subsequent amendments which may be approved by the Waste Planning
Authority;

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out in accordance with the approved plans and details and to accord with
the objectives of Kent Waste Local Plan Policies W18, W18, wao, W21,
W22, W25, W25A, W27, W31 and W32.

(4) The buildings hereby permitted shall be erected in accordance with drawing numbers OP/5
(Materials Recycling Facility), OP/6 (Anaerobic Digestion Plant), OP/8 (Finished Product
Building) and OP/9 (single storey office building) and shall be Heritage Green in colour, as
identified on the drawings, together with any subsequent amendments which may be
approved by the Waste Planning Authority,

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and fo ensure that the development is carried
out in accordance with the approved plans and details and to accord with
the objectives of Kent Waste Local Plan Policies W18, W19, W20, W21,
W22, W25, W25A, W27, W31 and W32.

(5) With the exception of works associated with conditions (14}, (15), (16) and (17), prior to
the commencement of the development hereby permitted, access improvements, including
signage, shall be completed in accordance with drawing number HD1;

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and capacity and safeguarding the local
environment and to accord with the aims of Kent Waste Local Plan Policy
waz.

(8) Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted a Site Users Guide shall
be issued to all drivers advising them to access the site from the east to turn right out of

the site;

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and cepacity and safeguarding the local
environment and to accord with the aims of Kent Waste Local Plan Policy
W22

(7) Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, details of the
weighbridge(s) and weighbridge office facilities shall be submitted to the Waste Planning
Authority for approval and implemented as approved,

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to maintain planning control over the site.

C1.35
Page 39



Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

®

©)

(10)

(n

(12)

(13)

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, fencing and gate details
shall be submitted to the Waste Planning Authority for approval and implemented as
approved;

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and fo maintain planning control over the site.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, details of external
lighting shall be submitted to the Waste Planning Authority for approval and implemented
as approved,

Reason: In the interests of visual amenily, for the avoidance of doubt and to maintain
planning control over the site and pursuant to Policy W25 of the Kent Waste
Local Plan.

Prior to any construction activities commencing on site the badger mitigation measures, at
both the construction stage and post construction, shall be carried out in accordance with
those recommendations set out in the Martin Newcombe report (dated 6 March 2010} and
SLR's letter dated 10 November 2010 which, amongst other matters, limits construction
activities to outside the period of January and June (inclusive) in order to avoid the period
in which badgers rear their young;

Reason: In the interests of nature conservation and in accordance with the principles
set in Planning Policy Statement 9 and pursuant to South East Plan Policy
NRMS, Policy W21 of the Kent Waste Local Plan and Palicy CO11 of the
Shepway District Local Plan.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted a strategy for electricity
generation and use on the site shail be submitted to the Waste Planning Authority and
implemented as approved;

Reason: in order to confrol development and in accordance with the principles of
Planning Policy Statement 22 and Policy NRM11, MRM13, NRM14, NRM15
and NRM16 of the South East Plan.

No development shall commence unti a surface water drainage scheme has been
submitted to and agreed in writing with the Waste Planning Authority, The scheme shall
ensure that the surface water run-off from the site is limited to 5 litres per second to either
a maintained sealed drainage system or to a watercourse that discharges unimpeded to
the East Stour.

Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding off site from surface water run-off in
accordance with the principles of PPS25 and pursuant to Policy W20 of the
Kent Waste Local Plan.

If, during the construction phase of the site the groundwater conditions are found to differ
to those identified in section 4.0 of the Groundwater Addendum Report (ref.
409.01376.00002, dated October 2010), then construction shall cease and the Waste
Planning Authority contacted immediately. Only following written approval from the local
planning authority can works recommence.

Reason: To prevent the risk of pollution to groundwater in accordance with the
principles of PPS23 and pursuant to Policy W19 of the Kent Waste [ocal
Plan.

Page 40

C1.36




Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

(14)  Prior to the commencement of development approved by this planning permission {or such
other date or stage in development as may be agreed in writing with the Waste Planning
Authority), the following components of a scheme to deal with the risks associated with
contamination of the site shall each be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Waste
Planning Authority:

1. A preliminary risk assessment which has identified:

« all previous uses;

« potential contaminants associated with those uses;

« a conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and receptors; and
« potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the site.

2. A site investigation scheme, based on (1) to provide information for a detailed
assessment of the risk io all receptors that may be affected, including those off
site.

3. The site investigation results and the detailed risk assessment (2) and, based on

these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full details of the
remediation measures required and how they are to be undertaken.

4. A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in (3) are complete and identifying any
requirements for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and
arrangements for contingency action.

Any changes to these components require the express consent of the Waste Planning
Authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved.

Reason: Sensitive controlled water receptors are present and there is a risk of
pollution from the past use of the site in accordance with the principles of
PPS23.

(15) Prior to commencement of development, a verification report demonstrating completion of
the works set out in the approved remediation strategy and the effectiveness of the
remediation shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Waste Planning Authority.
The report shall include results of sampling and monitoring carried out in accordance with
the approved verification plan to demonstrate that the site remediation criteria have been
met. It shall also include any plan (a “long-term monitoring and maintenance plan”) for
longerterm monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements  for
contingency action, as identified in the verification plan, and for the reporting of this to the
Waste Planning Authority.

Reason: Sensitive controlled water receptors are present and there is a risk of
pollution from the past use of the site in accordance with the principles of
PPS23.

C1.37
Page 41



TN25 6DA

Item C1

Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent

- FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

(16)

(18)

(19)

Reports on monitoring, maintenance and any contingency action carried out in accordance
with a long-term monitoring and maintenance plan shall be submitted to the local planning
authority as set out in that plan. On completion of the monitoring programme a final report
demonstrating that all long- term site remediation critetia have been met and documenting
the decision to cease monitering shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Waste
Planning Authority.

Reason: Sensitive controlled water receptors are present and there is a risk of
pollution from the past use of the site in accordance with the principles of
PPS23.

If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the
site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Waste
Planning Authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained
written approval from the Waste Planning Authority for, an amendment to the remediation
strategy detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with.

Reason: Sensitive controlled water receptors are present and there is a risk of
pollution from the past use of the site in accordance with the principles of
PPS23.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted a Code of Construction
Practice incorporating site investigation, site preparation and details of mitigation and
management for construction activities shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Waste Planning Authority. The Code shall include amongst other matters:-

a) methods of construction

b) hours of construction working

c) working practices

d) timing of works

e) means of access for construction

f) traffic management plan

a) waste management

h) contamination management (inciuding location and management of soil and
spoil stockpiles)

i) temporary lighting associated with construction activities

Site preparation and construction work shall be carried out at all times in accordance with
the approved Code of Construction Practice.

Reason: To safeguard the local environment and pursuant to policies W18, W19,
W20, W21, W22, W25, W25A, W27, W31 and W32 of the Kent Waste
Local Plan.

Operations shall be carried out strictly in accordance with Section 6.0 of SLR's Site Specific
Risk Appraisal of Potential Bioaerosol Releases (ref: 403.1376.00007) dated June 2010
together with any subsequent amendments which may be approved by the Waste Planning
Authority;

Reason: In the interest of iocal amenity and pursuant to Policy W18 of the Kent
Waste Local Plan.

Page 42

C1.38




Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

(20) Dust management shall be carried out in accordance with the mitigation measures specified
in section 5.4, page 21, of the Air Quality Assessment dated December 2007,

Reason: In order to minimise dust nuisance and in the interest of local amenity and
pursuant to Policy NRM9 of the South East Plan and Policy W18 of the Kent
Waste Local Plan.

(21) Odour management shall be carried out in accordance with the mitigation measures
specified in section 5.4, pages 23 and 24, of the Air Quality Assessment dated December
2007 and including the operation of a negative air pressure system to prevent any fugitive
emissions from any of the buildings proposed to be erected on site;

Reason: In order to minimise odour nuisance and in the interests of amenity and
pursuant to Policy NRMS of the South East Plan and Policy W18 of the Kent
Waste Local Plan.

(22) All organic waste material to be processed within the Anaerobic Digestion Plant Building and
all waste transferred within the site to the Finished Product Building, shall be transferred in
sealed containers only;

Reason: In order to minimise odour nuisance and in the interest of local amenity and
pursuant to Policy NRMS of the South East Plan and Policy W18 of the Kent
Waste Local Plan.

(23) Noise from operations on the site, including both fixed plant and mobile machinery, shall not
exceed the existing background noise levels when measured at the nhearest sensitive
receptors; measures shall include designing the buildings on site to achieve an attenuation
of at least 35dB, the insulation of fixed plant, the silencing of vehicles and mobile machinery
and the provision of acoustic screening as may be necessary to ensure that this noise level
is not exceeded,;

Reason: To minimise the adverse impact of noise generated by the operations on the
local community and pursuant to Policy NRM9 of the South East Plan and
Policy W18 of the Kent Waste Local Plan.

(24) Waste deliveries and transportation of materials off site shall only take place between the
following times:

0700 and 1800 hours Monday to Friday, and
0700 and 1300 on Saturdays

No waste deliveries or off site transportation of waste shall take place on Saturday
afternoons, Sundays or Bank and Public Holidays;

No operations other than the processing of compostable material within the Anaerobic
Digestion System shall take place outside these hours with the exception of essential plant
maintenance which may only take place up to 2300 hours between Monday and Saturdays
only;

Reason: To ensure minimum disturbance and avoidance of nuisance to the locality.

C1.39
Page 43



Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

(25) The buildings hereby permitted shall not be used for any purpose other than specified in the
application documents nor shall the building(s) be altered to accommodate any other use,
together with any subsequent amendments which may be approved by the Waste Planning
Authority;

Reason: In order to maintain planning control at the site.

(26) The site access, internal road and those parts of the site or building to be used for vehicle
manoeuvring, shall be maintained and kept free at all times from mud or other debris;

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

{27y Only waste material specified in the planning application and included within the supporting
statement shall be brought to the site,

Reasoh: In accordance with the details submitted. Waste materials outside these
categories raises environmental and water pollufion issues needing to be
considered afresh, and pursuant to Kent Waste Local Plan Policies W7,
W9, W10 and W19.

(28) No more than a combined total of 168 vehicle movements (84 in/84 out) associated with the
operations hereby permitied shall enter or leave the site in any one day;

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and capacity and safeguarding the local
environment and to accord with the aims of Kent Waste Local Plan Policy
Wwaz.

(29) All AD waste shall be delivered in sealed containers;
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and safeguarding the local environment
and to accord with the objectives of Kent Waste Local Plan Policies W18,
W19, W20, W21, W22, Was, W25A, W27, W31 and W32,
(30) All loaded, open backed vehicles entering or leaving the site shall be sheeted;
Reasomn: In the interests of highway safety and safeguarding the local environiment
and to accord with the objectives of Kent Waste Local Plan Policies W18,
W19, W20, W21, W22, W25, W25A, W27, W31 and W32,

{31) No waste shall be tipped into the waste reception hall until such times as the roller shutter
doors are closed;

Reason: In order to minimise odour nuisance and in the interests of amenity and
pursuant to Policy NRM9 of the South East Plan and Policy W18 of the Kent
Waste Local Plan.

(32) The maximum throughput of compostable waste processed through the Anaerobic
Digestions Plant shall not exceed 20,000 tonnes per annum;

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to maintain planning control over the site.

C1.40
Page 44



Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

(33) The maximum throughput of waste processed within the Materials Recycling Building shall
not exceed 75,000 tonnes per annum;

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to maintain planning controf over the sfte.

(34) Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, details of a landscaping
scheme, including hard surfaced landscaping, based on the principles set out in drawing
number OP/11 ‘Proposed Landscape Layout', shall be submitted fo the Waste Planning
Authority for approval. Details shall include, amongst others, the following:

+ the existing trees, shrubs and hedges to be retained and the measures to be taken to
provide for the protection thereof during the works hereby permitted;

« alltrees, shrubs and hedges proposed to be remaved;

+ the provision of new trees, shrubs, hedges and grassed areas, together with the details
of the species and method of planting to be adopted;

o+ details of ground preparation bunds of the bunds to be planted and the ongoing
maintenance proposed;

» additional planting details for the western boundary (as agreed in SLR email dated 2
March 2011),

» proposed native tree and shrub planting, including foraging areas for badgers;
» replacement planting, on the eastern boundary, in the event that any trees are lost;
* aprogramme of maintenance for a period of not less than & years

and upon approval such scheme shall be implemented as approved by the Waste Planning
Authority within the first planting season following the completion of the development hereby
permitted;

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and nature conservation and in
accordance with the principles set in Planning Policy Statement 9 and
pursuant to South East Plan Policy NRM5 and W21 of the Kent Waste Local
Plan

(35) Any casualies or failures of landscaping which occur for whatever reason, including
vandalism, shall be replaced within the first available planting season and thereafter
maintained.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and pursuant to Policy W25 of the Kent
Waste Local Plan and Policy CO1 of the Shepway District Local Plan.

(36) Precautions shall be taken to prevent tipping by unauthorised persons including prompt
repairs to the perimeter fencing and gates; any unauthorised material tipped on the site shall
be removed to an authorised site within 24 hours of such tipping having taken place,

Reason: To protect visual and other local amenities.

C1.41
Page 45



Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

(37) The terms of this planning permission and any schemes or details approved pursuant
thereto shall be displayed at the office on the site, and shall be made known to any
person(s) given responsibility for the management or control of operations.

Reason: To enable easy reference to the requirements of the permission.

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure} (England) Order 2010

This application has been determined in accordance with the Town and Country Planning Acts,
and in the context of the Government’s current planning policy guidance and the relevant
Circulars, together with the relevant Development Plan policies, including the following, and those
referred to under the specific conditions above:-

South East Plan 2009 Policies: CC1, CC2, CC3, CC4, NRM1, NRM2, NRM5, NRM9, NRM10,
NRM11, NRM13, NRM14, NRM15, NRM16, W1, W2, W3, W4, W5, W6, W7, W12, W16 and W17
Kent Waste Local Plan Policies: W3, W6, “Wg, W10, W18, W19, W21, W22, W25, W25A and
W31 :

Shepway District Local Plan Policies: E2, BE1, CO1, CO9, CO11, TR11, U4, U10 and U10a

The summary of reasons for granting approval are as follows:-

(1). The County Council is of the opinion that the proposed development gives tise to no
material harm, is in accordance with the development plan and that there are no material
considerations that indicate that the decision should be made otherwise. The County
Council also considers that any harm as a result of the proposed development would
reasonably be mitigated by the imposition of the attached conditions.

In addition please be advised of the following informative(s):

1. Please note the expiry date on your decision notice, along with all other conditions imposed.
You are advised any conditions which require you to formally submit further details to the
County Planning Authority for approval may be required to be formally discharged prior to
commencement of operations on site, or within a specified time. It is your responsibility to
ensure that such details are submitted. Failure to do so may mean that any development
carried out is unfawful and which may ultimately result in the permission becoming
incapable of being legally implemented. It is therefore strongly recommended that the
required details be submitted to this Authority in good time so that they can be considered
and approved at the appropriate time.

2. Please be advised of the Planning Applications Committee’s request that the finished floor
levels of the proposed buildings be as low as possible in order to reduce the visual impact of
the development.

Dated this Twenty eighth day of March 2011

(Slgned)ﬂ/_
Head of Planning Applications Group

C1.42
Page 46



Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

Schedule
Letter/Email Document Drawing | Title *
Correspondence B ] Number - ) ]
SLR latter dated 21 | Planning Design | Including
December 2007 and Access | drawing : |
Statement dated | numbers: ‘
December 2007
OP/4 Proposed Site Layout :
: OP/5 { Proposed Elevations on the |
; MRF ;
| OP/8 Proposed Elevations on the !
AD Plant ‘1
i OP/8 Proposed Elevations on the
Finigshed Product Building
]
! OP/9 Proposed Office Elevations
SLR letter dated 14 “OPI1O Habitat Plan and Proposed
March 2008 : Site Layout
SLR  Document
entitled :
' *Preliminary
! Contamination
Assessment and |
generic Risk : ‘
| Assessment’ 1 :
| | dated April 2008 ! | ,
| SLR letter dated 18 | . OP/10 i Habitat Plan and Proposed
. march 2008 to Kent | | Bite Layout |
| Highway Services | t Drawing 2 \ Proposed Access |
| received on 6 May : : Improvements ;
; 2008 | f '
i SLR letter dated 2 |
i May 2008 :
SLR letter dated 1
: : 8LR  Document ! OP/11 i Proposed Landscape Layout
entitled ‘Planning ! Proposed  Site Drainage
Application  for ;| OP/12 | Arrangement

: Recycling Facility’ Proposed Site Sections

dated May 2008 | 001 | Proposed Site Layout

OP/4 ' Habitat Plan and Proposed
QP/10 I Site Layout

"SLR letter dated 18 | Transport
 March 2008 Assessment
‘ Appendices 1-4

| SLR lefter dated 23 | Contamination =

' December 2008 Assessment ,
| dated October |
2008

C1.43
Page 47



Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

* Drawing HD1
J

" T Proposed

Access  Detail |
Design :

"8LR TTefter dated 19
September 2009

With
accompanying
Environmental |
Statement  and |
Plans :
|

Appraisal  dated |

: November 2009 |

Additional Visual | |

Email from SLR to |
the EA dated 28,
January 2010

"SLR letter dated 11
May 2010 !

SLR Document
entitied
‘Atmospheric

l
i
i
P
i

i Dispersion :
- Modelling Report’ -
| dated June 2010

: SLR  Document l
" entitled

- Appraisal of ;

. Bioaerosol

‘Site
Specific Risk
Potential
Releases’ dated
June 2010

SLR !
August

Email  from
dated 11
2010

: Monitoring
- Results

Table 1 entitled
‘Combined
Ground

WLOT

Water | OP/13

for i
Otterpool Quarry’

Graph of Water Levels from f
BH2 and BH3 j
: Proposed FW Storage tank !
i Levels for EA Approval

i

L

Email  from SLR
dated 7 October 2010

i entitled

. Badger

SLR  Document |
'Groundwater
Addendum

Report’ dated

October 2010

report |
dated 6 March
2010 by Martin w

- November 2010

‘ B Newcombe B E o
| SLR letter dated 10 | (Badger i
Mitigation) :

Page 48

C1.44




Item C1
Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning
permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent
TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)

Otterpool Case of
Need
Assessment
dated January
2011 and i
received on4
January 2011

SLR  Document
entitled
‘Addendum -
Noise
Assessment’ :
: received 9
 February 2011 |

C1.45
Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem E1

E1 COUNTY MATTER APPLICATIONS AND DETAILS PURSUANT
PERMITTED/APPROVED/REFUSED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS -
MEMBERS’ INFORMATION

Since the last meeting of the Committee, the following matters have been determined by me
under delegated powers:-

Background Documents - The deposited documents.

DA/25/01378 Replacement store building.
Longreach Sewage Treatment Works, Marsh Street, Dartford, Kent,
DA1 5PP
Decision: Permitted

DA/25/697/R15 Details submitted pursuant to condition 15 of planning permission
DA/25/697 - piling/foundation designs using penetrative methods.
Plot 6, Former Dartford International Ferry Terminal, Clipper
Boulevard, Dartford DA2 6QB
Decision: Approved

GR/23/376/RC Non-material amendment to planning permission GR/23/376 to allow
for modifications to the permitted extraction equipment and stack
height and to facilitate the installation of a sampling port for emissions
testing, as required by the facility’s Environment Agency (EA) permit
Britannia Refined Metals Ltd, Britannia Metal Refinery And Premises,
Lower Road, Northfleet, Gravesend, Kent, DA11 9BG
Decision: Approved

SW/22/500629/R Non-material amendment to planning permission SW/22/500629 to
alter the approved site layout
Land off Great Basin Road, Port of Sheerness, Isle of Sheppey, Kent
ME12 1SW
Details: Approved

SW/25/504190 Section 73 application to vary condition 2 of planning permission
SW/16/500698 to provide a temporary extension to the period of
stockpiling and delay the restoration of the site for a period of up to 10
years
Norwood Farm Quarry and Landfill Site, Lower Road, Minster on Sea,
Sheerness, Kent ME12 3AJ
Decision: Permitted

SW/25/504198 Section 73 application to vary condition 1 of planning permission
SW/20/505208 to extend the life of the landfill and the restoration of
the site by up to 10 years
Norwood Farm Quarry and Landfill Site, Lower Road, Minster on Sea,
Sheerness, Kent ME12 3AJ
Decision: Permitted

Page 51



TM/21/1259/RA

TM/25/2066

Non-material amendment to planning application TM/21/1259 for
minor alterations in the alignment of fencelines and hedgerows, the
location of substations, and the location of a small number of solar
panels

Land at Offham Landfill Site, Teston Road, Offham, West Malling,
Kent, ME19 5PF

Decision: Approved

Section 73 application to vary Condition 1 of planning permission
TM/15/775, to extend the timescale for soil screening operations on
site, supporting the restoration of the quarry in accordance with
approved restoration requirements

Borough Green Sand Pit, Maidstone Road, Platt, Sevenoaks, Kent,
TN15 8JL

Decision: Permitted

Page 52



Agenda Iltem E2

E2 COUNTY COUNCIL DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS AND DETAILS
PURSUANT PERMITTED/APPROVED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS
MEMBERS’ INFORMATION

Since the last meeting of the Committee, the following matters have been determined by me
under delegated powers:-

Background Documents — The deposited documents.

CA/21/01854/R5 & 22 Details of a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP)
(Biodiversity) (Condition 5) and details of a Construction Environment
Management Plan (CEMP) (Condition 22) pursuant to planning
permission CA/21/01854
A28 Sturry Link Road, Sturry, Canterbury, Kent CT20
Decision: Approved

CA/21/01854/R8&17 Details regarding the impact of the development on otters (Condition
8) and details of a Construction Management Plan (CMP) (Condition
17) pursuant to planning permission CA/21/01854
A28 Sturry Link Road, Sturry, Canterbury, Kent CT20
Decision: Approved

CA/21/01854/R13 Details of a Sustainable Surface Water Drainage system to be
implemented through a Surface Water Management Plan pursuant to
Condition 13 of planning permission CA/21/01854
A28 Sturry Link Road, Sturry, Canterbury, Kent CT20
Decision: Approved

CA/21/01854/R19 Details of the viaduct, roads, footpaths, verges, junctions, street
lighting, sewers, drains, retaining structures, service routes, surface
water outfall, embankments, visibility splays, accesses, carriageway
gradients, crossings, cycle paths, bus lanes, bus laybys, bus
clearways and street furniture pursuant to Condition 19 of planning
permission CA/21/01854
A28 Sturry Link Road, Sturry, Canterbury, Kent CT20
Decision: Approved

CA/21/01854/R21 Details of a Public Right of Way Scheme of Management (including
during Construction) pursuant to Condition 21 of planning permission
CA/21/01854.
A28 Sturry Link Road, Sturry, Canterbury, Kent CT20
Decision: Approved

CA/21/01854/R25 Details of archaeological field works in accordance with a specification
and written timetable pursuant to Condition 25 of planning permission
CA/21/01854 (part discharge).
A28 Sturry Link Road, Sturry, Canterbury, Kent CT20
Decision: Approved

Page 53



CA/21/01854/
R26&29

DA/24/985/R4

DO/20/1048/RB

DO/24/487/R

GR/25/328/R10 part

MA/22/503012/R6

TM/25/1406

Details of a scheme to deal with the risks associated with
contamination of the site (Condition 26) and details of a Piling Risk
Assessment (Condition 29) pursuant to planning permission
CA/21/01854.

A28 Sturry Link Road, Sturry, Canterbury, Kent CT20

Decision: Approved

Details of a Habitat Management and Monitoring Plan (HMMP)
pursuant to condition 4 of planning permission DA/24/985

Land through the chalk spine under the B255 Bean Road, Bluewater
Shopping Centre and Eastern Quarry, Dartford, Greenhithe, Kent DA9
9ST

Decision: Approved

A Non-Material Amendment for changes in the landscape scheme to
enhance screening opportunities in Section 1 and to ensure
compliance with the clearance requirements for the retained overhead
lines (OHL) in Section 2.

Dover Fastrack - Land to the north of Dover and to the south of
Whitfield, Kent

Decision: Approved

Non-Material Amendment to planning permission DO/24/487 to install
1100mm high curved back handrailing instead of the bull nose fascia
boarding originally permitted

The Elms School, EIms Vale Road, Dover, Kent, CT17 9PS

Decision: Approved

Details of Archaeological field evaluation works (with a specialist
Palaeolithic component) in accordance with a Written Scheme of
Investigation and timetable pursuant to Condition 10 of planning
permission GR/25/328 (in part).

Northfleet Technology College, Colyer Road, Northfleet, Gravesend,
Kent, DA11 8BG

Decision: Approved

Details of a Travel Plan pursuant to Condition 6 of planning permission
MA/22/503012.

Maidstone Grammar School For Girls, Buckland Road, Maidstone,
Kent, ME16 OSF

Decision: Approved

Removal of two existing sheds and replacement of existing modular
classroom with the installation of a single storey classroom building
and freestanding covered walkway, connecting the proposed new
building to the existing school buildings on the site.

Slade Primary School, The Slade, Tonbridge, Kent, TN9 1HR
Decision: Permitted

Page 54



Agenda Item E3

E3 TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
ASSESSMENT) REGULATIONS 2017 - SCREENING OPINIONS
ADOPTED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

Background Documents —

e The deposited documents.

e Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017.

e The Government’s Online Planning Practice Guidance-Environmental Impact
Assessment/Screening Schedule 2 Projects

(@) Since the last meeting of the Committee the following screening opinions have been
adopted under delegated powers that the proposed development does not constitute
EIA development and the development proposal does not need to be accompanied
by an Environmental Statement:-

KCC/SCR/AS/0182/2025 - Request for a Screening Opinion as to whether the
proposed installation of a temporary Moving Bed Biofilm Reactor (MBBR) and
associated Monitoring and Control Panel requires an Environmental Impact
Assessment

Wye Wastewater Treatment Works (WTW), Bridge Street, Wye, Kent, TN25 5DU

KCC/TM/0181/2025 - Section 73 application to vary Condition 1 of planning
permission TM/15/775, to extend the timescale for soil screening operations on site,
supporting the restoration of the quarry in accordance with approved restoration
requirements

Borough Green Sand Pit, Maidstone Road, Platt, Sevenoaks, Kent, TN15 8JL

(b) Since the last meeting of the Committee the following screening opinions have been
adopted under delegated powers that the proposed development does constitute EIA
development and the development proposal does need to be accompanied by an
Environmental Statement:-

None

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item E4

E4 TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
ASSESSMENT) REGULATIONS 2017 - SCOPING OPINIONS ADOPTED
UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

Background Documents -

° The deposited documents.
Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017.
. The Government’s Online Planning Practice Guidance-Environmental Impact

Assessment/Preparing an Environmental Statement

(a) Since the last meeting of the Committee the following scoping opinions have been
adopted under delegated powers

KCC/SCO/TH/0167/2025 - Request for a Scoping Opinion to determine the extent of an
Environmental Impact Assessment to accompany a planning application for a waste to
hydrogen facility

Land off Manston Road, Margate

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	A3 Minutes of the Meeting 17.12.25
	C1 Item C1 - Section 73 application to vary conditions 3, 21, 25 and 27 of planning permission SH/08/124 at Otterpool Quarry, Ashford Road, Sellindge, Kent TN25 6DA - FH/25/1739 (KCC/FH/0076/2025)
	E1 County matter applications
	E2 County Council developments
	E3 Screening opinions under Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017
	E4 Scoping opinions under Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017

